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CURPURATE PROFILE
naliéft

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”] was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands under the Company law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of
1961,

Company's domicile was changed to Bermuda by way of de-

as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The

registration in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda on 10 August 2016 (Bermuda
time). The shares of the Company are listed on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited [the “Stock Exchange”)
since 18 March 2011
The Company and ifs subsidiaries (the “Group”] were principally
engaged in the production and sales of marble and marble related
products in China. The Group is a mining operator, focusing on
marble products, and owned the largest beige marble mine in
China, namely Zhangjiacba Mine, which is located in Zhenjiang
Village, Xiangshui County, Jiangyou City of Sichuan Province,
Chino, in terms of marble reserves, occordmg to the certification
issued by China Stone Material Association (REIAM B E ) in
August 2010. The mining permit of Zhangjiaba Mine expired on
1 February 2021 and is currently in the process of being renewed
for another 5 Years.

According to the competent person’s report dated 7 March
2011, the Zhangjiaba Mine contains 44.2 million cubic mefers
The block rate is
expected to be 38% on the marble resources, which is equivalent

of measured and indicated marble resources.

to an estimated 16.8 million cubic meters of proved and probable
marble reserves.

4 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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RESOURCES AND RESERVES

The resources and reserves estimates for marble stones of
Zhangjiaba Mine in Sichuan Province as at 31 December 2020
under JORC Code (as defined in Chapter 18 of the Listing Rules)

are set out in the following table:

JORC Resource and Reserve Class

R S fi B
TR N2020F12 431 B R EJORC %A
(THERELETRAUFISE) HHEMM)IEER
FRLBAARAERREE

2020
2020%
Cubic meter

3 T3 K

2019
20194

Cubic meter

5K

14.21 million B &
25.65 million B &

14.86 million B&
26.82 million B&

39.86 million BE

41.68 million B &

5.07 million B8
9.14 million BE

5.30 million B &
Q.56 million B &

JORCERKFEEHI

Measured Resource REER
Indicated Resource HETEEIR
Total Resource BER
Proved Reserve FEHFE
Probable Reserve BEEE
Total Reserve BE IR

14.21 million B&

14.86 million B &

Note:

The resources and reserves for marble stones of Zhangjiaba Mine were estimated based
on the independent competent person’s report dated on 7 March 2011 (as shown in
the Company's Prospectus). The increases and decreases due to mining consumption

and exploration during the year were confirmed by internal experts.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FRERS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of
China Kingstone Mining Holdings Llimited (the “Company”) and ifs
subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual results

of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 ["FY2020").

FINAL RESULTS

For FY2020, the Group recorded revenue of RMB72.8 million
(FY2019: RMB65.7 million) and a gross profit of RMB6.9
million (FY2019: RMB4.4 million), representing an increase of

approximately 10.8% and 56.8%, respectively compared to those
for the year ended 31 December 2019 ("FY2019").

Net loss attributable to owners of the Company was RMB30.4
million for FY2020, as compared fo net loss of RMB68.5 million
attributable to owners of the Company for FY2019. Basic loss per
share for FY2020 was RMB1.1 cents, as compared fo basic loss of
RMB2.4 cents per share for FY2019.

BUSINESS REVIEWS AND PROSPECTS

The Covid-19 pandemic has pushed the global economy towards
a recession. 2020 has been fraught with uncertainty and
difficulties. The China economy has also faced the challenges of
the deteriorating US-China relationship and regional geopolitical
tensions. Though the China economy is showing a sign of bottoming
out, the Group believes it is a long way to go back to the pre-
Covid-19 levels given that most of major economies in Europe and
the United States are still in the grip of Covid-19 pandemic.

The demand for the marble slabs was still relatively weak. The
Covid-19 pandemic has caused construction project delays, which
resulted in some construction companies, particularly small and
medium sized ones, facing financial difficulties. The Group has been
extra cautious with additional investment in working capital and
containing the credit risk of our customers. The Group's decision
to tighten credit control may adversely affect the Group's financial
performance if and when the Group decides to reduce marble
slab transactions with its customers on the condition the overdue
outstanding invoices are settled.

6 ChinaKingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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Sales of marble slags remained generally stable as a raw material
for producing GCC which is widely used in production of daily
products, such as construction material, paper, plastic, paints,
efc. The Group's production volume of marble slags continved to
increase but the average selling price dropped due fo slowing the
economic growth in the PRC and a sudden increase in supply in
the market during FY2020. The Group believes the price of marble
slags will return to its normal level when the China economy re-
gains positive momentum.

The year 2021 has begun with promising news about Covid-19
vaccines. The inoculation plan has been going down in many
countries. There is hope that the spread of Covid-19 shall curb and
a sense that the worst is behind us. The Company will continue
fo maintain a high degree of vigilance against unpredictable
international developments and sensitive external factors that could
adversely affect the Group's business. Despite the difficulties
ahead, the Group will continue to consolidate the production and
operations of the mining business and extend the customer base to
improve the performance of the marble business. On the other hand,
the Group will also continue fo explore new business opportunities
so arising in order to maximize shareholders value in the future.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity fo express my heartfelt gratitude
to all our shareholders, customers and other business partners for
their affention and support to the Group in the difficult times. | would
also like to thank our directors, management team and all staff of
the Group for their dedication and hard work to the Group for the
past year.

Zhang Cuiwei
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SRR Rif

BUSINESS REVIEW

Marble Slab Business

Marble stones are widely used in construction and decoration
industry for decorative purposes due to its bright colour and lustrous
finish. Marble slabs are used in application such as interior and
exterior decoration, laying pavements, stairs, flooring and furniture.
The Group sells marble slabs through some distributors or purchasing
agents which have a strong track record and broad sales and
marketing network with the property developers and construction
companies in China.

During FY2020, most of countries imposed fravel bans and even
lockdowns in a bid to contain the spread of Covid-19. These
emergency public health measures triggered the cool down of
global economic activities. The construction market has remained
stable at the fime of the Covid-19 pandemic. However, the demand
for marble slabs was still weak as property developers were
more inclined to be cost-conscious with selecting their construction
materials. In addition, the persistent tension between US and
China has weighed on overall business sentiment and investor's
confidence. Some small-medium construction companies are facing
financial difficulties. The Group believes that it will remain a
formidable challenge for the development of marble slab business
amid the possible worsening credit quality of the customers.

Marble Slag and Calcium Carbonate Business

Marble slags are produced in the course of stripping overburden
at Zhangjioba mine and by crushing the cracked marble stones.
Marble slag is a core raw material for the production of ground
calcium carbonate powder ("GCC"). The Group sells the marble
slags to the GCC manufacturers which are close to the Zhangjiaba

mine.

Despite the serious disruption fo production in early year 2020
for almost three months due to the Covid-19 epidemic, the Group
managed to ramp up the production of marble slags through ore
stripping. With the global economic uncertainty, the property
development market has hardly been able to make an instant
rebound from the affermath of Covid-19. This has driven some
marble mine operations to convert part of its production capacity
to producing marble slags in the short run to counteract the effects
of the dampened economy. The sudden increase in the supply of
marble slags in the market has inevitably driven down its selling
price, especially against the grim economic backdrop. The Group
believes the plunge in the selling price of marble slag is temporary
and will recover gradually in line with the economic recovery in

China.

8  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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The Group plans to embark on the GCC business and infegrate
this info the existing marble slag business. GCC is produced by
the grinding process to transform marble slags info a powder.
GCC is widely used as raw materials in the production of building
and construction materials, paper, plastics, paints, coatings, and
personal health and food production. The Group may utilize its
own rich marble resources from the Zhangjiaba Mine to produce
marble slags and then further process them to become GCC. The
Group expects that the downstream vertical integration will result
in a synergy that allows the Group’s GCC business to become
competitive as the Group has a stable supply of marble slags in ifs
own hand and enjoys cost advantages.

The Group has entered into a non-binding memorandum of
understanding [the “MOU") with a GCC manufacturer as a joint
venture partner which possesses rich experience in the operation
of a GCC production site for setting up a GCC business in
Jiangyou in April 2017. The joint venture party backed out of the
MOU as the Group had halted the business plan due to litigation
proceedings involving the Zhangjiaba Mine until July 2018 when
the litigation was setiled. The Group attempted to press ahead
with the re-negotiation of the cooperation with the joint venture
partner but failed to strike a reciprocal deal. As such, the Group
expects that it will need to look for new cooperation partners and
explore other alternatives to implement this GCC business plan.
During FY2020, the Group has been attempting to reach certain
pofential cooperation partners. However, chances of meetings for
further discussion and negotiation have been on hold due to the
travel restrictions imposed amid the Covid-19 pandemic. The Group
believes it needs more fime until our GCC business can be off the
ground.

Exploration, Development and Production Activities
The Group focuses on the development and mining at the
Zhangjiaba mine during FY2020. The Zhangjioba mine confains
44.2 million cubic meter of measured and indicated marble
resources, which represents 16.8 million cubic meter of proved
and probable marble reserves based on a block rate of 38%,
according fo the independent competent person's report dated on
7 March 2011 (as shown in the Company's Prospectus]. There was
no geological exploration activity for the new mining site during

FY2020.
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The Zhangjiaba mine is mainly divided into the eastern mining zone
and the western mining zone. During FY2020, the Group continued
fo carry out the stripping of the overburden materials at the surface
for both the eastern and western zone of the deposit. The deposit
in these areas is still cracked. The Group expects that the further
development of the mine fo lower benches will be required for large
block production and the block production will commence no earlier

than 2022.

During FY2020, the aggregate expenditure of the mining operation
of the Group was approximately RMB26.8 million (FY2019:
RMB23.9 million), which mainly included depreciation on property,
plant and equipment of approximately RMBO.5 million (FY2019:
RMB7 .6 million), safety protection related expenses of approximately
RMBO.1 million (FY2019: RMB2.3 million) and subcontracting cost
of stripping of approximately RMB25.9 million (FY2019: RMB9.8
million) and none of consumables and fuel (FY2019: RMB3.5
million). During FY2020, the Group expanded the mine areas
worked by the outsourced engineering team in order to reduce the
fixed cost of production and increase the financial flexibility of the

Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB7.1 million
or 10.8% from approximately RMB65.7 million for FY2019 to
approximately RMB72.8 million for FY2020. The increase was
primarily due to a combined effect of (i) an increase of RMB1.5
million in sales of marble slabs from RMB39.9 million for FY2019
to RMB41.4 million for FY2020, resulting from the pentup demand
during the period of the lockdown in China in early 2020; and
[i) an increase of RMBS5.6 million in sales of marble slags from
RMB25.8 million for FY2019 to RMB31.4 million for FY2020,
as result of ramping up the production of marble slags through
speeding up the sfripping.

10 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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Revenue by products

EEmE WA

Year ended 31 December
BZ12HA31HLEEE

2020 2019 Change
20204 20194 )
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETTT

Marble slabs AIE AR 41,413 39,892 +3.8%
Marble slags AELRS 31,352 25,797 +21.5%

72,765 65,689 +10.8%
Analysis by sales volume and selling price REBREEETHNSN

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE

2020 2019 Change
20204 2019%F 23
Sales volume: $HE
Marble slabs [square meter) REARM (FHXK) 147,500 139,062 +6.1%
Marble slags (ton) RNEAED () 1,718,977 1,135,574 +51.4%
Average selling prices: FHEE:
Marble slabs [RMB per square meter]  KIZARM
(BEFRARBL) 280.8 286.9 -2.1%
Marble slags (RMB per ton) AEAEDS (FMARET) 18.2 22.7 -19.8%
EMRERR

Gross profit and Gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by approximately RMB2.5 million or 55.8%
from approximately RMB4.4 million for FY2019 to approximately
RMB6.9 million for FY2020. The increase was primarily due to an

increase in production output of marble slags.

Gross profit margin increased by 2.8 percentage points from 6.7%
for FY2019 to 9.5% for FY2020. The increase was primarily due
fo gain cost advantage by an increase in production output for the
marble slags.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &IRIE351smb il

Selling and distribution expenses
Selling and distribution expenses decreased from RMB2.5 million for
FY2019 to RMB1.9 million for FY2020. The decrease was primarily

due to a decrease in transportation cost.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased from RMB41.7 million for
FY2019 to RMB20.5 million for FY2020. The decrease was
primarily due to (i) a decrease of RMB10.9 million in share option
expenses in relation to share optfions granted to the Directors and
certain employees of the Group and [ii] a decrease of RMB9.4
million in provision for litigation and a reversal of HK$3.4 million
in provision for litigation in relation to the legal case of the disputes
of an agreement dated @ August 2013 for assignment of loan
receivables.

Impairment loss under expected credit loss model
The Group made an impairment loss of RMB14.4 million under
expected credit loss model for FY2020, representing a decrease by
RMB13.8 million, as compared to RMB28.2 million for FY2019.
The impairment loss was provided for FY2020 primarily due to an
increase in gross trade receivables resulting from payment delays
of the outstanding invoices owed from marble slab customers, due
to challenging financial market conditions in 2020. The Group
manages ifs credit risk by offering standardized credit terms to its
customers of marble products for an approved credit term of Q0
days. However, some major customers with longer relationships with
the Group were granted longer payment terms. The Group's credit
policy and the determination of impairment loss on trade receivable
is also influenced by the individual characteristics of each customer
and default risk of the industry in which the customers operate.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a loss of RMB30.4
million for FY2020, representing a decrease of RMB38.1 million as
compared fo a loss of RMB68.5 million for FY2019.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's tofal equity interests were
approximately RMB313.1 million, representing a decrease of 9.9%
as compared with RMB347.5 as at 31 December 2019. The
decrease was mainly affributable to a nef loss of RMB30.4 million

recorded for FY2020.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB4.3 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB49.0 million). Cash and bank balances were
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Chinese Renminbi
["RMB"). The Group has adequate financial resources fo meet the
anticipated future liquidity requirement and capital expenditure
commitment.

As at 31 December 2020, total borrowings of the Group,
comprising other loans of approximately RMB3.9 million and a
director’s loan (included in amount due fo directors) of approximately
RMB4.4 million was unsecured and matured within one year. The
annual interest rafe of the borrowings for FY2020 ranged from 5%
to 12% per annum (FY2019: 10%). Expect for RMB500,000 other
loan, all other borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
and accounted for as current liabilities of the Group. The Group
does not currently use any derivatives to manage the interest rate
risk. Gearing ratio, representing tfofal borrowings divided by fotal

equity, was 0.03 (31 December 2019: 0.01)

Capital Expenditure
During FY2020, the Group's capital expenditure amounted to
RMB6.3 million (FY2019: RMB3.3 million), which was primarily

related to acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

Charge of the Group's Assets
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any

charges on its assefs.

Significant Investment Held
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no material
investments held by the Group.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group principally operates its businesses in the PRC. The Group
is not exposed to significant foreign exchange risk as most of the
Group's business fransactions, assefs and liabilities are principally
denominated in RMB, which is the functional and reporting currency
of the Group, except certain adminisirative expenses of the Hong
Kong office which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
Group has nof entered into any foreign exchange contracts as
hedging measures.
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Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any

significant contingent liabilities.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments
for purchase of property, plant and equipment and construction
of property, plant and equipment which were confracted but not
provided for amounted to approximately RMB8.8 million (2019:
approximately RMB8.8 million) and approximately RMB6.8 million
(2019: approximately RMB®.8 million), respectively.

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets
Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have

any other specific plan for material investments or capital assefs as
at 31 December 2020.

Environmental Policies and Performance

Details of environment policies and performance refers to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” contained in this
annual report for further information on the work done and efforts
made by the Group on environment protection, legal compliance
and other aspects for the sustainable growth and development of
the businesses of the Group.

Compliance with Applicable Laws and Regulations
During FY2020 and up fo the date of this annual report, the Board
was not aware of any non-compliance with any relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

Key Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognizes employees as valuable assets of the Group.
The Group provides competitive remuneration package to employees
and reviews staff benefit regularly. The Group intends to use its best
effort to attract and attain appropriate and suitable personnel to
provide services fo the Group.
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The Group attaches importance to the relationships with its custfomers
and suppliers. The Group believes that building a long-term
beneficial relationship with each of them is of paramount importance
to establish mutual trust, loyalty and business development and on
which the Group's success and sustainability rely.

The Group will continue to maintain and strengthen its relationship
with its customers through regular contacts with them. It is the
industrial norm that the marble mine operator usually selects a few
maijor distributors and manufacturers, which has production sites that
are close to the marble mine in order to save fransportation cosfs,
management costs as well as sales and marketing costs. Thus,
the Directors consider that there is no significant risk associated
with reliance on major customers due to the nature of the Group's
products.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had employed a total of 28
employees (31 December 2019: 31 employees). The fofal staff
cost, including directors’ emoluments, share options benefit and
pension scheme contribution, was approximately RMB4.6 million for

FY2020 (FY2019: RMB17.2 million).

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary frends in Hong
Kong and the PRC, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject to the
Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute a discretionary
bonus fo its employees as an incentive for their contribution to the

Group.

Use of Proceeds from Fund Raising Activities

On 3 March 2017 and 24 April 2017, the Company entfered into
an agreement and supplemental agreement with an underwriter by
issuing 2,360,068,975 rights shares to qualifying shareholders by
way of the rights issue at subscription price of HK$0.12 per rights
share on the basis of five rights shares for every share in issue on
the record date.
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The net proceeds from the rights issue were approximately
HK$276.5 million. The rights issue was made for the purposes
of (i) approximately HK$191.8 million (RMB170.0 million) for
the contribution of funding in the joint venture company for the
calcium carbonate business, in which approximately HK$149.2
million (RMB132.2 million) for the setup of manufacturing building
lincluding the property, plant and equipment) and approximately
HK$42.6 million (RMB37.8 million) for the general working capital
of the business; [ii) approximately HK$33.8 million (RMB30.0
million) for general working capital of the Group, including but
not limited to the operating cash used for the daily production of
marble and marble related products, the setlement of outstanding
accounts payable to vendors and the general operating expenses
of the Group; and [iii) the remaining net proceed of approximately
HK$50.9 million [RMB45.2 million) for the seftlement of the
potfential damages arising from the litigation in relation to the breach
of a written underwriting agreement and between the underwriter of
the open offer announced by the Company on 14 May 2015.

As at 29 September 2017, the Company resolved fo change
the use of the unutilized net proceeds of HK$50.94 million for
the setflement of the potential damages arising from the litigation
to use the unutilized proceeds for (i) purchasing machineries for
replacement of wellworn mining equipment (approximately HK$15
million); (ii] investments in the marble slabs business (approximately
HK$20 million), and (iii) general working capital (approximately
HK$15.94 million). For details, please refer to the announcement of

the Company dated 29 September 2017.
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During FY2020 and FY2019, the net proceeds had been utilized — F202081 B4 E k20198 B E [E - FT 15 5IBF
as follows: BMOBAMT
Actual use of  Actual use of Unutilized Unutilized
Intended proceeds proceeds  Proceeds as at  Proceeds as at
use of during during 31 December 31 December
proceeds FY2019 FY2020 2019 2020
#2019 #2020 R2019% 20205
HHEE BHEE 12A3182 12A3182
FEREZ FBHELZ FERALZ B A ABA
AEAR  RBREABR HBREAER A FEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET T TET TEL
The contribution of funding for TENEREERMEES
the GCC business
- Setup of manufacturing building -EREERT (BE
(including the property, 0%k BERRE)
plant and equipment) 149,150 - - 17,482 -
- General working capital of —-MEEEBHN—REE
the calcium carbonate business E%a 42,610 - 547 34,119 4,430
General working capital of the Group AEEN-REEES
~ Purchasing of machineries for “HARBARERB
marble mining business BERRN 15,000 - - - -
- Marble slabs business —REARMEHK 20,000 11,500 31,132 = S
~ Setilement of litigation — AR - = 8,421 — =
- Other general working capital -HE—REELESE 49,780 8,545 7,071 — =
276,540 20,045 47171 51,601 4,430

RATHER2021F 12431 B2 Al # i R 8 A
ZHRRERERAEEZ —REEES-

The Company intends to apply the unutilized proceeds to the
general working capital of the Group on or before 31 December
2021.
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Intended use of the unutilized proceeds and the
expected timeline

In April 2017, the Group entered in a non-legal binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with a ground calcium
carbonate manufacturer to form a joint venture company to extend
the downstream business of calcium carbonate production in
Jiangyou City, Sichuan Province, the PRC.

During FY2018, the JV partner obtained the land use approval for
part of the planned production site from the land and Resources
Department of Jiangyou City and the Construction Permit on site from
the relevant authority in China. In the wake of the setilement of the
litigation involving the auction of the Zhangjiaba mine in July 2018,
the Group and JV Partner eagerly underwent the re-negotiation of
the operational details of the cooperation. In June 2018, the Group
and a joint venture partner (the “JV Partner”), who is the shareholder
of the ground calcium carbonate manufacturer, entered into a joint
venture agreement (the “JV agreement’] in relation to formation
of a joint venture company (the )V Company”’) to operate GCC
production in Jiangyou City, Sichuan Province, the PRC. In August
2018, the JV Company was formed as to 51% by the Group and
49% by the JV Partner in accordance with the JV agreement. The
Group also made the deposit payment of approximately RMB51.6
million for acquisition of property, plant and equipment in respect
of the GCC business. However, given that cerfain fund needs for
the GCC business development plan have already been contributed
by the JV Partner as opposed to the Group under the MOU, the JV
Partner demanded to adjust the terms of the cooperation framework.
The Group aftempted to press ahead with the re-negotiation of
the acceptable terms for both parties but was unable to strike
a reciprocal deal. As such, the Group will need to look for a
new cooperation partners or change its tack and explore other
alternatives to implement this GCC business plan.

During FY2018, the Group made a deposit payment of
approximately RMB51.3 million [equivalent to approximately
HK$60.0 million) to suppliers for the acquisition of plant and
equipment in respect of the GCC business. As the negotiation of
the cooperation agreement with the joint venture partner came
fo an end, the Group has withheld the delivery of the plant and
equipment from the suppliers until further notice.
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During FY2020, the Group has been attempting to reach cerfain
potential cooperation partners, however, chances of meetings for
further discussion and negofiation have been on hold due fo the
travel restriction imposed amid the Covid-19 pandemic. The Group
believes it needs more fime until our GCC business can be off the
ground.

Re-allocation of Use of Proceeds

As the Group was unable to materialize the original GCC business
plan for the reasons as disclosed above, the Group resolved
and ratified the reallocation of part of the net proceeds originally
intended for the GCC business fo meet the on-going needs and
shortfalls required for the general working capital of the Group. This
includes re-allocating such unused proceeds to the working capital
for the existing marble business, payment for the sefflement of
litigation and other general administrative expenses, such as rental
expenses, salary and other administrative expenses. The Board has
authorized the unused proceeds originally intended for the GCC
business to be applied to the general working capital of the Group
as when required.

FEESAREEZERERAF

R2020BRFE - AEBHABRAETEES
EBH AN ARFEERESRIEHHEER
IRITRS - E—FimhkERCERBE A&
ERA BEEMBRSEGEDHTESER-

ENSEFEREARE

HRAEBEREXMBEBZREAEEZZER
EEMBSEBKAE AKSERRRMAEE
MORRFAEBREERMBESEBNAER
HEBRBD UnREAEE-—REEEDLH
SEFREBARO BREBZERDAM
BREEHIERERAAAELEBNEE
B XNFRMBEREM-RITERA
e HFehEMTRAX - EF@CBE
\FERBRFEANELREKSEL R
BRMERARELASEN —REEES -

2020 %R 19



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENRSHREIREBEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zheng Yonghui (Efk#E ) , aged 52, has been an executive
director of the Company since @ April 2019. Mr. Zheng has over
20 vears of global business experience around many regions,
including Greater China, Asia and Europe. He has accumulated
rich experience in international trade and business management.

Zhang Weijun

Mr. Zhang Weijun (5RE&E ) ("Mr. Zhang”), aged 62, has been
an executfive director of the Company since 24 December 2015.
Mr. Zhang has around 10 years of experience in mining industry
and is currently a vice president of a mining company in the PRC.

Zhang Cuiwei

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei (52 %k) ("Ms. Zhang"), aged 52, has been an
executive director of the Company since 1 January 2016 and was
appointed as a member of Nomination Committlee and a member
of Remuneration Committee with effect from 12 September 2018.
Ms. Zhang graduated in Foreign languages and literature from Jilin
University of the PRC. Ms. Zhang has about 20 years of experience
in corporate management, personnel and administration affairs.

Zhang Mian

Mr. Zhang Mian (58 %), aged 63, has been an executive
director of the Company since 4 February 2019. Mr. Zhang Mian
graduated from South China Normal University in China and has
many vyears of experience in journalism and communication and
media management. He has worked in one of the most influential
mainstream newspaper group in South China. He has also
accumulated rich experience in business management in the fields of
construction, decoration engineering, packaging and printing, new
material development and application.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Yang Ruimin

Mr. Yang Ruimin (#5880 ("Mr. Yang”], aged 37, has been an
independent non-executive director of the Company, chairman
of Nomination Committee, a member of Audit Committee and
a member of Remuneration Committee since 11 June 2018.
Mr. Yang holds a bachelor degree in Economic and Administrative
Management from PLA Nanjing Political College (H B A R ##
BEERBUEERL) . M Yang has over 10 years of experience in
human resource management in different industries.
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Andreas Varianos

Mr. Andreas Varianos, aged 42, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company and chairman of Audit Committee
since 17 July 2020. Mr. Varianos has over 13 years of experience
in corporate and financial services in Cyprus. Mr. Varianos holds a
bachelor of science degree in Business Administration (Accounting
and Finance) from the American College of Greece in Athens,
Greece. Since 2013, Mr. Varianos has been a Qualified ACCA
Member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom. He had previously worked as a Senior Auditor
for KPMG Cyprus from 2007 to 2010. He had also worked as a
director of InferTaxAudit Auditors and Tax Consultants Limited from
2010 to 2017. He is currently the Founder and Managing Partner
of Santabros Enterprises Llimited (Edge Development Group) and
the Founder and Managing Director of AsusPlus Auditors and Tax
Consultants Limited since 2017. Mr. Varianos was appointed as a
director of G Entertainment Group Plc. on 30 April 2019, a Cyprus-
based holding company listed on the Cyprus Stock Exchange,
which is currently being dissolved by way of creditor's voluntary
winding up.

Mehmet Ertan Ahmed

Mr. Mehmet Ahmed, aged 61, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company, chairman of Remuneration
Committee, a member of Audit Committee and a member of
Nomination Committee since 28 September 2020. Mr. Ahmed is a
Fellow Chartered Certified Accountant with over 30 years of finance
and business experience working in a number of sectors including
bonking infrastructure, asset management, corporate finance, oil
and gas, shipping, insurance and other industries. Mr. Ahmed
holds a bachelor of science degree in Physics from the University
of Sussex, United Kingdom. Since 1995, Mr. Ahmed has been a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom. He previously worked as a Consultant of an
offshore private bank from 2015-2019 and is currently managing
a business plan for a fintech project. From 2016-2018, he held
posts as CFO of an investing company originally listed on the AIM
of the london Stock Exchange and VP Corporate Finance of First
International Group Plc., an asset management firm from 2010-

2014.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company sfrives fo attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements
of its businesses and the best interest of all of its stakeholders. The
Board believes that high standards of corporate governance provide
a framework and solid foundation for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders and enhance the
shareholders” value.

The Company has complied with the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Llisting of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong limited (the “listing Rules”) for
FY2020 except for a deviation from code provisions A.2.1, E.1.2
and A.1.8 of CG Code

Deviation from A.2.1 of the CG Code

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer ["CEQ") should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be clearly established and set out in writing. During
FY2020, there is no officer carrying the title of CEO and also no
chairman being appointed by the Board. The duties of the CEO
are underfaken by executive directors of the Company while the
independent board members assume the role and responsibility of
chairman of the Board to ensure that the board is effective in its task
of setting and implementing the company's direction and strategy.
The Board considers that there is sufficient balance of power and
the current arrangement maintains a strong management position of
the Company.

Deviation from E.1.2 of the CG Code

Under the code provision of E.1.2 of CG Code, the chairman of
the Board should aftend the annual general meeting. As disclosed
above, the Board did not appoint a chairman during FY2020 and
therefore the post was vacant during the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 29 June 2020 (the “Annual General Meeting").
The Board elected Ms. Zhang Cuiwei to chair the Annual General
Meeting. As such, the Board is of the view that provision E.1.2 of
the CG Code was not applicable to the Company at the time and
should not be regarded as a deviation from the CG Code.
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Deviation from A.1.8 of the CG Code

Under code provision of A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against the Directors. Currently, the Company does not have
insurance cover in this respect as the Board believes that, with
the current infernal control system and the close supervision of the
management, the Director’s risk of being sued or getting involved in
litigation in their capacity as a director of the Company is relatively
low. Nevertheless, the Board will review the need for insurance
cover from time fo time.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Llisting Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries with all directors of the Company
(the “Board” or "Directors”), all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
fransaction throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

() Composition of the Board

The Board has maintained a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the business requirements and objectives of
the Group and for the exercise of independent judgment.
The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. Each Director of
the Company has been appointed on the strength of his/her
caliber, experience, professional qualification and potential
fo contribute to the proper guidance of the Group and ifs
businesses.

The composition of the Board was set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Yonghui

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong (ceased on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Zhang Weijun

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Mian
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wang Yihua (ceased on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Sheng Guoliang [ceased on 29 June 2020)
M. Yang Ruimin
M. Andreas Varianos

[appointed on 17 July 2020)
Mr. Mehmet Ertan Ahmed

[appointed on 28 September 2020)

During FY2020, to the best knowledge of the Company, there
was no financial, business or family relationship among the
members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Bye-aws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”), any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his
appointment and be subject to re election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition fo the
existing Board shall hold office only unfil the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re election. At each annual general meeting, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-
third but not less than one-third] shall refire from office by
rotation. Each director shall refire at least once every three
years.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 20 to 21 of this
annual report.

Independent non-executive Directors

Each of independent non-executive Directors [the “INEDs")
was appointed for a term of three years, subject to re-election
by rofation at least once every three years. The re-election
of each of these INEDs who has served on the Board for
more than nine years is subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders.

The Company received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the listing Rules. The Board has
reviewed the independent non-executive Directors and
considered that all of them are independent with the definition
of the Listing Rules.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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In the annual general meeting held on 29 June 2020 (the
"AGM"), Mr. Sheng Guoliang and Ms. Wang Yihua were not
re-elected by the shareholders of the Company as an INED. As
a result, Mr. Sheng and Ms. Wang was no longer respectively
an INED affer AGM. Ms. Wang was the one who possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. Since then, the Company had
only one independent non-executive Director left in the Board.
The Company had not complied with the requirements under
Rule 3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A until Mr. Andreas
Varianos and Mr. Mehmet Ahmed were appointed as an INED
on 17 July 2020 and 28 September 2020, respectively.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company complied with
requirements under Rule 3.10(1], Rule 3.10(2) and Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended
31 December 2020.

Attendance of Directors at the board meeting
and general meeting

The Directors can aftend meeting in person or by means of
such telephone, electronic or other communication facilities as
permit all persons parficipating in the meeting fo communicate
with each other simultaneously and instantaneously in
accordance with the Bye-laws. The company secrefary of the
Company (the "Company Secretary”) will assist the chairman
of the Board and/or executive Director to prepare the agenda
of the meeting and each Director may request to include any
matters in the agenda for the regular Board meefings. All
Directors may seek the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance
and regulatory matters. All directors will also be provided
with sufficient resources to discharge their duties, and
upon reasonable request, the Directors will be able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company's expense. All minutes of Board meefings
were recorded in sufficient detail, including matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board and are open for
inspection by Directors.

The By-laws contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving fransactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.
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There were 6 board meetings and 1 general meeting held
during FY2020. The attendance of each Director at the board
meetfings and general meeting is set out below:

R2020M MFE A RABE B ITOR
EEZ22a3RIABRRARE -BREFHE
E=Z2eB MBERARENREHEIINT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HE BITEBRRE

Director Board meeting  General meeting
B= EXZE2ER BRERE
Mr. Zheng Yonghui B oK R 5% A4 6/6 0/1
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REB L 5/6 1/1
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong REBSEE

(ceased on 29 June 2020) (PR2020F6A20H BEE) 3/3 0/1
Ms. Zhang Weijun REEILE 6/6 0/1
Mr. Zhang Mian RGN E A 6/6 0/1
Ms. Wang Yinhua TEELS

(ceased on 29 June 2020 (FR2020%F6 A28 BE(T) 3/3 0/1
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BB REE

(ceased on 29 June 2020) (PR2020F6A20H B ) 3/3 0/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin (k= Gt 4/6 0/1
M:r. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos %t 4

(appointed on 17 July 2020) (R2020F7H17REEE) 0/2 0/0
Mr. Mehmet Ahmed Mehmet Ahmed 5t 4

(appointed on 28 September 2020)  (RA20206F9A28HEZ(T) 0/0 0/0

The Board and Management

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Group, which includes leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group's businesses, sfrategic decisions,
internal control, risk management and performances. The
principal functions of the Board is to [1) convene general
meetings and report the Board's work at general meetings;
(2) implement the resolutions passed by the shareholders
in general meetings; (3) consider and approve strategies,
financial obijectives, annual budget, investment proposals of
the Group; [4) formulate the proposals for profit distributions;
(5) assume the responsibilities of corporate governance of
the Group; and (6) exercise other powers, functions and
duties conferred by the shareholders in general meeting. It is
the responsibility of the Board to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the Company’s
circumstances and to ensure processes and procedures are
in place to achieve the Company's corporate governance
objectives.
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The management team is delegated with the authority and
responsible by the Board for the day-to-day management of
the Group and is accountable to the Board. The management
team has overall responsibility for formulating the business
strategies and development plan of the Group and is also
responsible for the supervision and execution of the plans
of the Group. The delegated functions and work tasks are
periodically reviewed.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board fo enhance ifs operating results and quality of
its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees diversity at the Board
level as an essential element in maintaining a competitive
advantage. A truly diverse Board will include and make
good use of differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, gender and other qualities of the
Directors. These differences will be considered in defermining
the optimum composition of the Board. All appointments of the
Directors are made on meritocracy, and will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises eight
Directors, amongst them, three are Independent Non-executive
Directors, thereby promoting critical review and control of
the management process. The Board is also characterized by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender,
age, professional experience, skills and knowledge.

Having reviewed the Policy and the Board’'s composition,
the nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) considered that the requirements of the Policy had
been met.
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(VI) Continuous professional development of

Directors

The Directors, on an ongoing basis, will receive amendments
fo or updates on relevant laws, rules and regulations. In
addition, the Company encourages the Directors to enroll
in a wide range of professional development courses and
seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and corporate governance practices so that
they can continuously improve their relevant knowledge and
skills. The Company will, if necessary, provide timely and
regular trainings to the Directors fo ensure that they are kept
abreast with the latest requirements under the Listing Rules and
corporate governance practices.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer (the
"CEQ") are clearly defined and segregated fo ensure independence
and proper checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the
business strategy and direction of the Company and has executive
responsibility, provides leadership for the Board and ensures
proper and effective functioning of the Board in discharging of its
responsibilities. The CEO is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company's strategies and the co-ordination of
overall business operations.

During FY2020, no officer carried the title of CEO and no
chairman was appointed by the Board. The duties of the CEO
are underfaken by executive directors of the Company while the
independent board members assumed the role and responsibility
of the chairman fo ensure that the board is effective in ifs task of
sefting and implementing the company's direction and strategy. The
Board considers that there is sufficient balance of power and the
current arrangement maintains a strong management position of the
Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

()  Audit Committee
The audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Company
has been established by the Board with specific written terms
of reference and all members of the Audit Committee are
INED:s.

28  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the primary duties of the audit committee of the Company
are mainly fo make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor,
the review of the financial statements and material advice
in respect of financial reporting and the oversight of infernal
control procedures of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises
three INEDs, namely Mr. Andreas Varianos, Mr. Yang Ruimin
and Mr. Mehmet Ahmed. Mr. Andreas Varianos is the

chairman of the Audit Committee.

During FY2020, the Audit Commitlee held 2 meetings fo,
including but not limited to, 1) review the annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2019, 2] review the interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2019 before their submission
to the Board and monitored the integrity of such financial
statements, 3] review and assess the auditor's independence
or objective in relation to the provision of non-audit services; 4)
review the Company's financial positions, internal control and
risk management systems and give suggestions to the Board
and 5) meet with independent auditor to discuss the nature
and scope of the audit and the areas of concern.

The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of
the members of the Audit Commitiee at the audit committee
meeting are sef out below:

REEGHAZESEVRERE A2AF
AREENTIERERMZME EFZ
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BT
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Andreas Varianos t £ AR L E S
}%o
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2REZAN(BEERIRER)1)EHEZE
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MEEEEEIBZE201966A308 I
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EUBBREOTEN J)RFTRTESE
STENE R IER AT R 7 E A I8 L 1 3k
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HEFZRRS) BB LB B mE
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Attendance/
Members of Audit Committee Number of meeting
BN ZEERE HE/BITEERY
Mr. Andreas Varianos (Chairman) Andreas Varianos 5t 4 (/&) 1/1
Mr. Yang Ruimin ST E 2/2
Mr. Mehmet Ahmed Mehmet Ahmed 7t 4 0/0
Ms. Wang Yihua (Chairman) FTEELL (FF)
(ceased on 29 June 2020) (FR2020F6A290HBE(T) 1/1
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BER%E
(ceased on 29 June 2020) (FR2020%F6A29HBE(T) 1/1
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of
the Company has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference and all members of the Remuneration
Committee are INEDs.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are mainly fo make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and the senior management of the Group, review
performance-based remuneration and ensure none of the
Directors determine their own remuneration.

As af the dafe of this report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Mehmet Ahmed and
Mr. Yang Ruimin, and one executive Director, namely
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei. Mr. Mehmet Ahmed is the chairman of the

Remuneration Committee

During FY2020, the Remuneration Committee held 3 meefings
fo approve and review the remuneration packages of the
Directors and the management of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility
fo determine the remuneration packages on individual
executive Directors and senior management, in compliance

with B.1.2 (c](i) of CG Code.

Remuneration of all executive directors of the Company was
within the band of RMB500,000 or below. Further particulars
in relation to director’'s emolument and the five highest
paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Llisting Rules are set out in note 13 to the
consolidation financial statements.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee and
aftendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at
the remuneration committee meeting are set out below:
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(M) Nomination Committee

The nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”] of
the Company has been established by the Board with specific
written terms of reference.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are mainly to make recommendations to the Board on
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become the Board
members, considering the reappointment of the Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. Details of the
authority and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee
comprises two INED, namely Mr. Yang Ruimin and
Mr. Mehmet Ahmed, and one executive Director, namely
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei. Mr. Yang Ruimin is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During FY2020, the Nomination Committee held 3 meetings
to nominate and make recommendation of candidates for
Directors and review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and concluded that members of the Board have
possessed the expertise and independence fo carry out the
Board's functions and responsibilities.
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NOMINATION POLICY RABOR
The Group adopted a nomination policy (“Nomination Policy”) on  ZREBR2019F 1 A1 HH M —HIBEEL XK
1 January 2019. A summary of this policy is disclosed as follows: (MRBEBE]) ZEHENBEERZENOT

1. Obijective 1. B®
1.1 The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable 1] REZECENEFTTRILABEN

candidates to the Board for it to consider and make
recommendations to shareholders for election as directors
of the Company at general meetings or appoint him/her
to fill casual vacancies.

REAAFEZE ARBRERREH
ERARALEIARAESEXZE
EA B A L AE R B ZEBR[ AR
REtHEBEZ-

1.2 The Nomination Policy helps the Nomination Committee 1.2 REBKXEYREZZESRESS
and the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance BMREFSAERRE KRBREEAZ
TAETHERTE UIEEXEH

of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives

appropriate fo the requirements of the Group's business EBEEMNEK
development.
2. Selection Criteria 2. BMERE
2.1 The factors listed below would be used as reference by 2] EREEREREANSERER 1R

REEER2ETXMIAR-

the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate.

*  Qualifications and experience in the relevant e RARAEBMIRHIES
RHHEBEITENEL RER:

industries in which the Company's business is
involved or is going fo be involved;

e Commitment in respect of available time and e RBRARMBLMEBEBEIN
relevant interest L

®  Reputation for integrity; and e WEBE X

e Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited e EEgXrEMEZET B

BARNER L RBEE
R RBER BXRER mE-A
A M AR 75 4 B

to gender, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion fo nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

FRRAREHRSE XIIFRIFA
RE FTEREUEER -REBZ
BgrnlBRAERSEENTM
Ate

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT fEFEiS RS

3. Nomination Procedures
3.1 The Nomination Committlee shall call a meefing, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members
([if any) for consideration by the Nomination Committee
prior to its meeting. The Nomination Commitlee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by
Board members;

3.2 Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the
necessary personal information, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the
Company. The Nomination Committee may request
candidates fo provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary;

3.3 The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed
candidate’s suitability with reference to the selection
criteria stated above and make recommendation(s) to the
Board'’s consideration and approval;

3.4 In the case of the reelection of a director at the general
meeting, the Nomination Committee shall review the
overall contribution of the directors to the Company and
their services, their partficipation and performance within
the Board, and whether such director still meets the
needs fo complement the Company's corporate strategy.

4 Review of the Nomination Policy
4.1 The Board will review the Nomination Policy from fime

to time

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's
financial statements for each financial period, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flows for that period. The Company deploys appropriate
and sufficient resources to prepare audited accounts. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps fo safeguard the assefs of the
Group and to prevent and defect fraud and other imregularities.
The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
fo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

HE S AREERARA T

3. REEFR
3.1 REZECEREHER AUNXNEZH
MBFESENBRAKREA (M
BINHRREZZEEEFH REZ
BEefAREABETENERS
YR A

32 BRERBEABRILENEAE
B ERREERERARAES
MEERE -RRBEZBE@UAEHER
RUENBERTEREEARRKH
1l B B R S

33 REZECASELRBEREN
EEREEANAELE YRNES
EEMEBRZBAREL:

3.4 MRBRERRELEREF RELZE
EeRENESAARAFLNE
BERMERE ERNEFEMNSHE
BERKRE MREFEZENHE
AEARBIEERBONFNR-

4 BHERBBER
40 EFERTHRTREEE-

[ 5 % 7
EXeRREANBV R AEAREAEEY B
BERNEE NEEQAAMKRBRAEENE
BRAREZBENEERRERE - AR A
HARBRELABERMNBHEEFRE - &
mEEZ20206F12831 8 IEF E & B &% &8
AR EEZEDEBAEMNETRRLER
—EBHMER FHEER 2o RGEMHE R
BE IREELLEELERFHVBERR-EF
BERDM—YEAERUEFRUREAEHE
BE URBEMEERRFLEMTE RN
M-BEYTHNEBERAATEERNARARFE
RENENZINERERNEHFIMANE
A E R NEABAEE -

2020 &R 33



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT R EiGiRS

The Group endeavours to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group's performance, position
and prospects. The inferim and annual results of the Company are
announced in a fimely manner within the limit of two months and
three months, respectively, after the end of the relevant periods in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid or payable for the services provided for
FY2020 to Elite Partners CPA Llimited (“Elite Partners”) is set out

below:

Services rendered

AEEBOAKFE - BHAREAFAGBAEEE
B-ARARAIR - ARBANRHARFEFERED
BETRUMNORE DR EFBEBBERR
MEAR=ZEANRPARKE RS-

B T Bl 557 T

2020 FRCREM R M MK E
NRATERSFMEBAERAR ([FATE
I HFHEI T

Fee paid/payable

BHO KRB e EFER
RMB'000

ARET T

Audit of financial statements el PR S 444
Other non-audit services H b JEE AT RS 142
586

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and infernal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group's accounting, infernal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and infernal control system to ensure adequate control in place fo
safeguard the Group'’s assets and stakeholder's inferest.

34 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures to
respond 1o the risks resulting from significant changes to the business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are

designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.

The management would identify the risks associated with the
business of the Group by considering both internal and external
factors and events which include political, economic, fechnology,
environmental, social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed
and prioritized based on their relevant impact and occurrence
opportunity. The relevant risk management strategy would be
applied to each type of risks according to the assessment results,
type of risk management strategy has been listed as follows:

- Risk refention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group fo reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimize the adverse impact results from the risks.
The risk management and infernal control system are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

For FY2020, the Group has engaged an external advisory firm fo
perform the review on the risk management policy and procedures
and carry out the internal audit function to ensure the effectiveness
and efficiency of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group. There is no significant deficiency and weakness on
the internal control system that may affect the financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions has been

identified by the external advisory firm for FY2020.

HE S AREERARA T
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The Board reached the conclusion that the risk management
and internal control system and procedures of the Group were
reasonably in place and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Wai Kee ("Mr. Cheung”) is the company secrefary
of the Company. He is the employee of the Company and has
adequate knowledge on the Company to discharge his duty as the
company secrefary of the Company. Mr. Cheung confirmed that he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for

FY2020.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

(I) Shareholders convene an special general

meeting

Pursuant to the Byedaws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda, any one or more registered shareholders holding af
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the voting right
at general meetings of the Company (the “Requisitionists”)
shall, at all times, have the right, by writlen requisition that
must be signed by the Requisitionists to the Board deposited
at the registered office of the Company tfo require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition and such meeting
shall be held within three months after the deposit of such
requisition. If, within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the Requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner. Any reasonable
expenses incurred by the Requisitionists by reason of the failure
of the Board duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to the
Requisitionists by the Company.

() Procedure by which shareholders may put
forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders should send their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company's share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meeting of the Company.

36 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

ExeR A AEENEAREENARABDE
TEABMREFEBABERRRED -

IR
REBAEE([REE]) AARAB QAW
EBRARANEEYHARAERDT
BB ITEERRARR AR MENEE -
RAEBRBREER2020REEEST IR
15/ BAE R -

Jie A A
() RREMBRRBIKRE

REARMAAURBEREIOSIFRADA:
FAREXREREAFHA T LR ER
ARBBERAEG LRREMOAR A
RBANTDZ —W—2HZREMK
RTBRADEERBEREIKEX
ABRENEAEREARANEMMPE
BRTEFEE BEREZTSARBKERH
R NEEFAHMERMEANTMASE
B MABAEAREXREHRBRREK=
MARNBT - HEFERNBMEE
QIRAREBHRBEBAEG BEKRAH
BITAMBER RN TTE AR AR
BRAENEEZTEREARAREME
EHEMAEER-

) BREOESEEHEHHRER

BRESEUBRENERNERIANRFN
BROBFELREEETRELFBELAR
NAE WU RERBEBFE2FEABRISES
FAMAPLIZEIZ12-17165 4 -

BRRMARRNABDHERAG LRAES
SEHLER-

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT fEFEiS RS

(1) Shareholders put forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions under the Company's Byelaws or the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda regarding procedures for
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings
other than a proposal of a person for election as direcfor.
Shareholders may follow the procedures set out above to
convene a special general meeting for any business specified
in such writtlen requisition.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

(I) Constitutional documents
The Company confirmed that there has been no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum of associations and
the Bye-laws during FY2020.

() Communication with shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear,
fimely and effective communication with the shareholders
and the investors. The Board also recognizes that effective
communication with the investors is the key to establish
investor's confidence and to aftract new investors. Therefore,
the Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of
fransparency to ensure that the investors and the shareholders
receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information
of the Group by the publication of annual report, interim
reporfs, announcements and circulars. The Company also
publishes all such documents on the Company's website at
www.kingstonemining.com. The Directors and the Board
committee members are available to answer questions at
annual general meeting of the Company.

() Dividend policy
The Company adopted a dividend policy on payment
of dividends on 1 January 2019. It aims at enhancing
fransparency of the Company and facilitating its shareholders
and the potential investors of the Company to make informed
investment decision relating to the Company. The Board will
review the dividend policy from time fo time.
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While the Company intends to declare and pay dividends in
the future, the payment and the amount of any dividends will
depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to:

[a)  the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

(b)  the Group's expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future expansion
plans;

[c] retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(d)  the Group's liquidity position;

le)  the general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business
or financial performance and position of the Group; and

(ff  any other factors that the board of directors of the
Company deems relevant.

Shareholders will be entitled to receive such dividends pro
rata according fo the amounts paid up or credited as paid
up on the shares. The declaration, payment, and amount of
dividends will be subject to the Board's discretion.

Dividends may be paid only out of distributable profits as
permitted under the relevant laws. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to declare or distribute any
dividend in the amount set out in any of the plans or at all.
The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may
not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
the future.
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RIR-HBKRE)

ahs

OVERVIEW

This report focuses on the disclosure of the Company’s performance
in respects of business integrity, green production, environmental
employee development,

protection, responsible production,

teamwork, production safety and health, and giving back to society.

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance ("ESG”) Reporting Guide issued by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (the “Stock Exchange’], as set out in Appendix
27 to the Llisting Rules of the Stock Exchange. Identfification and
disclosure of information on the Company’s ESG performance is for
reference by stakeholders and shareholders.

this ESG Report includes the business
operations of the Group in both Hong Kong and China during
December 2020

(the "Reporting Period”) relating to the overall performance, risks,

Unless otherwise stated,
the reporting period for the year ended 31

strategies, measures and commitments of four aspects: quality of
working environment, environmental protection, operating practices
and community participation.

Through this ESG Report, the Group makes public and detailed
disclosure and elaboration of ESG and other non-financial matters
of the Company. The Group hopes that the report disclosures
will provide the opportunity to review our own ESG performance
and governance achievements, as well as provide a platform for
the public to understand our social responsibility values and non-
financial business achievements.

OVERALL APPROACHES AND POLICIES

The Group has been persisting in creating economic benefits,
promoting business development and performing its corporate
social responsibility to strike a balance between all parties,
while advocating corporate integrity in ifs pursuit of sustainable
development. For our sustainable development, we are committed
to:

e Ensuring the compliance with laws, regulations and standards
applicable to our operatfions in an ethical and fransparent
manner;
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®*  Maintaining a longterm and sustainable relationship by
listening to the voice of the community fo understand the social
needs;

e  Establishing and maintaining open and transparent
communications with local communities and the public
on matters regarding safety, environment and community
relationship; and

° Protecting the integrity, health, and benefits of stakeholders
on issues such as cooperation and respect for employees,
communities and environment, for the sake of being
recognized as a company with sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our
businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal to strengthen the
sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we put effort
in maintaining a close communication with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to government and regulatory authorities,
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, and the general
public. We take stakeholders’ expectations into consideration in
formulating our businesses and ESG strategies by utilising diversified
engagement methods and communication channels, shown as
below.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Zhangjiaba Mine (“the Mine") located at Zhenjiang Village,
Xiangshui County, Jiangyou City of Sichuan Province, China, is
subject to various PRC environmental protection laws and regulations
relating to a broad range of environmental protection matters, such
as land rehabilitation, water and soil preservation, noise control and
discharge of wastewater and pollutants. It is the Group's policy to
ensure the mining activities carried out by the authorised miner are
in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations.

40 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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Emissions

Air emissions

During the year of 2020, the mining operations are carried out
by the authorised miner. Management considers that the emissions
and wastes generated by the Group are insignificant. The major
air emissions during the year is mainly the use of motor vehicles
for staff to and from the mine site and the urban area. The Group
is concerned about the adverse effect the use of fuel has on the
environment and promotes car-pooling wherever possible and
using tele-conference or video conference in place of face to face
meetings. During the process of combustion of fuels, other air
pollutants, such as nitrogen oxides ["NOx"), sulphur oxides [“SOx")
and particulate matters (“PM") are also produced.

Greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions

The Group has constantly updated itself with the local legislation
and standards for environmental protection and assessed whether
these legislations and standards are related to the business of the
Group and the Group's compliance status. The Group will continue
to seek for ways to reduce CO2 emissions and land contamination.

Emissions data summary
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B EES KRS BRI 3
ZTE e

FHREEME

Unit 2020 2019
BAL 2020% 20194
Air emissions
KRR
Nitrogen oxides kg 5 22
BELY T
Sulphur oxides kg 0.02 0.1
meatm T
Respiratory suspended particles kg 0.4 1.6
AR ABE R F T
Greenhouse gas emissions
BEREHEN
Scope 1 - Fuel combustion Tonne 3 32
g is —— R G g
Scope 2 - Electricity consumption Tonne 13 1
i _—FNHEME MR
Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions Tonne 1 17
gls = —HE MR MR
Total GHG emissions Tonne 17 50
BERBHMAE L7
Intensity million dollar 0.2 0.7
of revenue
"R BEBTWA
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Hazardous and non-hazardous wastes production

No hazardous waste was produced during the daily office
operation. The general office waste was mainly aftributed to the
domestic wastes. The Group has formulated a guideline for waste
classification, reduction, reuse, recycling and disposal. Paper is one
of the major non-hazardous wastes generated in the offices. The
Group adopted the following practices to reduce paper waste at
source, so to reduce the production of non-hazardous waste:

e Print only when needed and encourage duplex printing; and
®  Rewuse single-sided used papers, envelops, folders and carfon
in office.

During the Reporting Period, no violation of environmental laws
and regulafions regarding emission of exhaust air and greenhouse
gas, discharge into water and land, as well as hazardous and
non-hazardous wasfes that had significant impact on the Group
was found. The Group also confirmed that it was not subject to
governmental penalties due to any violation of aforesaid laws and
regulations in the course of business during the Reporting Period.

The major source of emissions are from the combustion of petrol
and the use of electricity. With the implementation of energy saving
measures, the Group aims fo maintain the GHG emission infensity at
about 1 tonne per million dollar of revenue.

Use of resources

The Group utilizes resources effectively and responsibly to achieve
sustainable development. The Group encourages staff to adopt
environmentally responsible habits in their day to day acfivities,
and the Group constantly measure waste production, and seek fo
promote use of recyclable materials.

The Group did not have problems in seeking appropriate water
resources. The existing supply of water resources could satisfy the
Groups needs in the aspects of volume, quality of water and the
guarantee of water supply facilities. In 2020, the Group carried
out measures of reduction in watfer consumption, recycling and
ufilization of industrial waste water.
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The following consumption data were recorded in the year ended

31 December 2020 and 2019

iR~ HEKREIGHS

B E2020F R2019F12A31 B L FE#15
LA H R B

Resources Unit 2020 2019
BRE|AR v 2020 20194
Petrol kWh 13,605 141,035
U FREH
Electricity kWh 8,622 21,803
g TR B
Energy consumption intensity kWh per million dollar

of revenue 449 2,479
BERBERTE TRE B8BTHA
Paper consumption kg 173 276
AR H TR
Paper consumption infensity kg per employee 6 10
MERBERETE TR/ 888T
The Group is committed to upholding a high environmental AEEBHAEZEBEFSRREEEDHRIER

standards in order to promote environmental friendliness. Throughout
the Group, the following actfions have been implemented to reduce
energy consumptfion:

= maintain optional room temperature at 26° C;
- switch off idle electrical appliances and lightings; and
- car pooling arrangement for employees in the Mine.

Environment and natural resources

As mining operators, the Group is in the business of exfracting
natural resources at the Zhangjiaba Mine. The Management of the
Group believes every practicable effort had been made to ensure
their collateral impact to the surrounding environment is kept fo a
minimum. Right at the planning stage of the excavation the location
is sef fo be outside the urban planning area, and does not involve
designated areas such as nature reserves, scenic spots and cultural
relics {under preservation protection). Further, there are no farmlands
are located near the mining sites.

It is the firm belief of the Management that both the effective and
efficient use of energy and due care to the environment are vital for
sustainable development of the Group. Hence the Group closely
monitors and reviews the relevant data from time fo time, minimizing
the negative effect to the environment and maximizing its business
development and operation at the same time.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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SOCIAL

The Group has a comprehensive personnel management system
which is prepared (subject to geographical locations) in accordance
with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong
Kong), labour law of the People's Republic of China (R ZE AR
HFEIZEEE) |, Llabour Contract Law of the People's Republic of
China (P EARKMELE A FIE) and other applicable laws,
as well as industry practices. The system covers recruitment, rank
management, remuneration, fraining, confidentiality and other areas.
The Group ensures employees are clear about their own rights and
responsibilities as they will comply with the system and carry out
their work legally, in order to safeguard the interest of both parties.

Employment

Although the Group has faced challenges from a downtrend
economic environment, the staff is willing 1o work with the Group
to tackle these unfavourable, adverse conditions. The Group has
established a policy to ensure that the rights of each staff member
are profected no matter the circumstances. The employment
contract of the Group specifies the terms including compensation
and dismissal, working hours, rest periods and other benefits and
welfare for our staff. Every staff member of the Group has signed
the employment confract with the Group. The promotion policies
of the Group are based on the performance of the relevant staff in
their position on annual basis.

Working hours, rest periods and leave paid

Five-day work arrangement is adopted to facilitate work-life balance.
In addition to all rest days and statutory holidays as specified in
local laws and regulations, employees are entitled to paid annual
leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves, marriage leaves and
compassionate leaves. Overtime work compensation is given to
staff for doing overtime work.
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Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity REBERATHSE

The Group actively promotes a diverse workplace where people AEEBEREEEHEZ TN ITEB TR E
from diverse backgrounds are valued and respected. The Group SEMALEKHEZERREHE- AKBE KM F
adopts equal employment opportunity policies and treats all the HEEHESEHR HE2EEE—RELC -ERFE-
employees equally. Employment, remuneration and promotion are  ¥BREA T EEK - RikH & B4 - A -
not under the influence of social idenfities, such as ethnicity, race, RZE P F i - M - BUA K B K& 18 W AR
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction R EFE it 2 & -

and marital status.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Management of the B E2020F12A3 1A LFE AEEERE
Group was nof aware of any non-compliance with the relevant 3 & &0 & 4F ] 32 Ik & & & B A8 78 & 1% )% Dl

employment law and regulation in both Hong Kong and PRC. KIRBIEER

Workforce Staff turnover

distribution rate (%)

ADDB  BIREKE%)

Total number of staff ETHAAH 28 26
Gender eyl

Male S 20 26

Female it 8 27
Category Epill

Senior management SRERRE 12 30

Management EBAR 5 Nil

General staff WAL 11 36
Region Hh [

Hong Kong G 10 32

PRC H 18 23
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Health and Safety

The health and safety of employees have always been the group's
priority of productions. To manage the risks of workplace incidents
and to highlight the importance of heal care of their employees, the
Group had established various guidelines and policies. These are
included in their Staff Handbook, which is distributed to employees
and enforced by their line management and human resource
department. The majority of their mining workers are employed
through a third party agency. The Group had stipulated these
agencies to adhere to similar if not higher standards on the safety
and health care of their employees.

Every worker is required tfo follow safety instructions and to receive
training for using the equipment and/or machinery properly. A
safety monitoring mechanism has been established and staff in each
of production stage has been assigned to monitor the compliance of

iR~ HEKREIGHS

BERZZ
BENRBERZE2Z—ERASELEEZHT
MEZER RERZLETESHEHNAEA
aVAFHEERRE2EZE AEBEEHE
ZRESIRERE - ZFHEIRBREBEAA
HETFM FMOoETREREIHESR
EEEMANBERMBAKNIT HRI D RE
TADEBRE=Z7TREER AEBEERTE
ZEREBBRFEAHEE T2 REENEMU
(MIFER)RE-

ST AAMTR2HES YEXAWER
EARER IREEI - AEECRUR
SEERHINEEERRERETIEER
2RBEFER -

safety rules.

Occupational health and safety statistics 2020 2019
BERERZEZSTEE 20204 20194
Number of lost days due to work injury EIEmERNTIERH Nil & Nil =
Number of work-related fatalities EITEBENET AK Nil 2 Nil =
Number of work injuries TIE#E Nil 2 Nil =

The Management believes the Group has fully complied with law
and regulations regarding the health and safety requirements of the
business activities of the Group for the year ended 31 December

2020.

Development and Training

Management believes that keeping their employees up to date
with emerging trends and standards plays a fundamental role in
business growth. Therefore, the Group encourages employees to
continuously develop and improve their skill through training. The
Group understands that fraining could facilitate sustainable long-
term development, which is beneficial for both the Group and the
employees. The Group provides fraining for directors regarding the
Group's development and essential skills. The Group evaluates these
fraining programmes from fime to time and reviews its effectiveness.
The Group encourages communication befween management
and employees, the Group respects and cares about employees’
opinions and suggestions.
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Training details of director and staff for the year ended

31 December 2020:

iR~ HEKREIGHS

HZE2020612A3BHEFEEERETIN
BRIEE

Percentage of

Average training No. of staff staff attended
hours attended attended training training
Fi52 H 2 aEI| S aEI|
1 BETAH ETEDH
By Gender t k]l
Male B1 5 7 35
Female egiid 2 2 25
By Category RER
Senior management =REREE 2 7 22
Management EEAB 20 1 20
General staff LTEET Nil £ Nil £ Nil #&
Labour Standards % T XA

The Group is committed to uphold the labour rights of staff and has
established a compliant mechanism for staff to report any labour
violations. The Management believes that the Group has complied
with relevant labour standards for the year ended 31 December
2020. It is always the group's policy to prohibit employment of staff
members under the legal working age of 18. During the year ended
31 December 2020, no labour disputes between the company and
its staff has been recorded.

The Group adhere to the laws and regulations prohibiting child
labour and forced labour, which mainly include the following:

e Employment Ordinance of HKSAR

e labor law of the PRC

e labor Contract law of the PRC

e law of the PRC on Profection of Minors

e Regulations on Prohibiting Use of Child labor (State Council
Order No.364)

FEESAREEZERERAF
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Supply chain management

The purchasing department will target suppliers with reputation
in industry, and then make selections through comparing quotas
and negotiation. The Group also performs background check to
their potential miners according fo effective procedures in order fo
prevent fraud during the selection process.

In selecting contractor and equipment suppliers, the Group
takes into account various factors, such as |i) quolHy of services;
[ii) contracting costs; [(iii) safety management; and [iv] relevant
qualifications (if applicable). The Group requires contractors to
maintain a high stfandard of quality for the services provided, and
to comply with and have in place adequate occupational health
and safety and environmental protection procedures in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations and safety requirements
imposed by the relevant PRC government authorities.

The mining activities are carried out by a reputable local qualified
service provider which comply with government regulation during
the year ended 31 December 2020. The Group does not foresee
its source of supplies to be a potential threat to the group operation.

Product Responsibility

The quality of products depends on the quality of the mine as the
Group has not further processed the beige marble blocks. The
Group facilitates customer on-site inspection and festing fo ensure
the quality of the marble blocks are in line with their expectations.
The Management believes that the Group has complied with
relevant laws and regulations related to the products of the Group.

During the vyear ended 31 December 2020, the Company did
not receive any complaints from customers about our products or
services and recall any products for safety and health reasons.
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Anti-Corruption

With regards to compliance with relevant laws and regulations in
different regions, the group maintains a code of business integrity. A
system with good moral integrity and the anti-corruption mechanism
is the cornerstone for the sustainable and healthy development of
the group. The Group also prohibits staff from receiving gifts of
excessive amount from customers and suppliers. The Group fakes a
zero-tolerance approach fo corruption and bribery and is committed
to acting professionally, fairly and with integrity in all our business
dealings. Any suspicious transactions would be notified and
reported to the relevant governing body by the responsible officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group and
our employees.

Community Involvement

Contributing fo society is a part of the Group's sustainable
development strategy. The Group is committed fo providing career
opportunities to locals and promoting the development of the
community's economy. The Group fully understands and appreciates
the importance of and the need for community investment. One
remarkable aspect fully appreciated by the local community is that
most employees of the mine come from nearby villages. The Group
is committed fo developing more community investment opportunities
in its development plans. Through day-to-day contact with community
officials and leaders, the Group explores and examines how the
Group can engage the community.
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REPURT OF THE DIRECTORS
EE RS

The Board hereby presents its report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are the mining, processing and frading of the
marble stones and marble-related products. During the year, there
were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities.

The principal activities of the Company’s major subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statfements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are provided
in the Chairman Statement on pages ¢ and 7 and Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 8 to 19 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are sef out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 71 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the

year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not hold any major property development and/or
sale or for investment purposes as at 31 December 2020.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are sef out in note 33
fo the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis fo existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated
stafements of changes in equity on page 74 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has no reserves available
for distribution to shareholders in accordance with the Company's
Bye-laws (31 December 2019: RMB12.8 million).

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings of the Group are sef out in notes 29 and
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years are set out on page 152 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zheng Yonghui

Ms. Zhang Cuiwei

Mr. Zhang Jianzhong [ceased on 29 June 2020
Mr. Zhang Weijun

Mr. Zhang Mian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Yihua (ceased on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Sheng Guoliang (ceased on 29 June 2020)
Mr. Yang Ruimin
Mr. Andreas Varianos

(appointed on 17 July 2020)
Mr. Mehmet Ertan Ahmed

(appointed on 28 September 2020)
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RETIREMENT

In accordance with clause of the Company's Byelaws, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall refire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to refirement at an
annual general meetfing af least once every three years. A circular
containing the biographical details of the director candidates
eligible for re-election and the nofice of annual general meeting will
be sent to the shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Andreas Varianos,
Mr. Mehmet Ahmed, Mr. Yang Ruimin and Mr. Zhang Weijun will
refire by rofation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Company considers
all the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS" INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this report, the Directors confirm that in relation
fo their profile, no information is required to be disclosed pursuant
to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a ferm of three years from the date of his/her
appointment. Such service contract can be determined by either
party serving at least one month’s notice prior fo the expiry of the
term.

None of the Directors (including any Director who may be proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting) has
entered into any service agreement with the Company which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at general meeting.
Other emoluments will be determined by the Remuneration
Committee and the Board with reference to the duties,
responsibilities, performance of the Direcfors and the results of the
Group. The remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular review
and monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the
levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 13(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are sef out on pages 20 to 21 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance
of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends in
Hong Kong and China, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject
to the profitability of the Group, the Group may also distribute
a discrefionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group. The Group has adopted a share option
scheme for its employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”] under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group also participates in a defined contribution
retirement scheme (the “Retirement Scheme”) organized by the
relevant local government authority in the PRC, under which the
Group is required to contribute a specific percentage of the payroll
of its employees to the Retirement Scheme. Save as disclosed
above, the Group has not operated any other refirement benefifs
schemes for the Group’s employees. No forfeited contributions were
available to the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions
and the Group does not have any defined benefit plans.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 100% (2019: 94%) of total sales of the
Group and the largest customers accounted for 43.1% (2019:
31%) of tofal sales of the Group. The five largest customers are all
medium-size enterprises.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's five largest
100% (2019
the Group and the largest supplier accounted for 88.9% (2019
84.5%) of total purchases of the Group.

suppliers accounted for 100%) of total purchases of

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of
the Company's issued capital had any interest in the five largest
customers. To the best of knowledge of the Board, it is not aware of
any relationship among the major customers.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

December 2020, the interests and short positions of

Company or any of ifs associated corporations |within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")),
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited (the “Stock Exchange”] pursuant
fo provisions of Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors or chief executive
have taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFOJ; (b)
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, fo be entered in
the register referred fo therein; or (c) were required, pursuant fo the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as sef out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were set out
below:

(a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the
Company

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each held
FBEEREECOIETZEEBRHA

REZE2020F12A318LEE K&EER
AMEREAEELKBEEIO0% (2019
F:100%) ZAHEREAEEERER
88.9% (20194 : 84.5%) o

MEEFARFEMNBEAITARR (5
EEAM BAEARBDHEITRASEAL)R
TAREFTHAEMES REFTSMAM
ARBYATHMEBIERP 2HAEMBREK-

=R R
M2020FE12A831H EERARD ﬂiﬁt&ﬂ
BB (TERBEHFRBEKRN ([F
HEEG)EXNVE) Z kG *aﬁﬁﬂxfﬁjﬂf
FHhEF)REBEEFESFRBEKRMEXVIHES
MESHEZ G EBME AR A R E
ARG BRAR ([BRAT)2EZRAR
(PHEREBESRBEKRABHEBKEE X
BERTRABREERRIEFTF ZERS R
2) (b)REEHRBEKRGIEIS2HEATA
ZIEDIFTEzZECMZERZR AR  H(c) B
BEMBAIKSTIE ETBETAESE
TEARSGMEETA([EETFAENS
RKARMRBRAIzEERARHIWET

() REAFEBERZFR

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Name of Director  Capacity Direct interest  Deemed interest Total interest  of the Company
RN
BETRAE
Exns ) EERER HRERAES BEDS BOL
Zheng Yonghui la) Interest of a controlled - 287,997,542 287,997,542 10.17%

corporation (Note)

B oK iE (a) I AEE (Pi&E)
[b) Beneficial owner 138,740,000 - 138,740,000 4.90%

(b) Bz B A

138,740,000 287,997,542 426,737,542 15.07%
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Note:

The 287,997,542 ordinary shares of the Company were directly owned by
Oasis Tycoon Investments Limited of which all inferests are directly controlled by
Mr. Zheng Yonghui.

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the
Company
Details of the interests of the Direcfors in the share options
of the Company are separately disclosed under the section

headed “Share Option Scheme”.

(c) Short position
As at 31 December 2020, none of Directors or the chief
executive nor their associates had any short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period did the
Company or any of its holding company or subsidiaries participate
in any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executive
lincluding their spouse and children under 18 years of age) fo
acquire any inferests and short positions of shares or underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of ifs associated
corporation |within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2020 were rights
fo acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement fo enable the Directors to acquires such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors are aware that any
person (not being Directors or chief executive of the Company) has
an inferest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 24 January
2011 [the "2011 Option Scheme”), which was terminated on 29
June 2020. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual
General Meeting held on 29 June 2020, a new share option
scheme (the “2020 Option Scheme") was adopted. A summary of
the 2020 Option Scheme is set out below:

Purpose

The purpose of 2020 Option Scheme is to give the eligible persons
an opportunity fo have a personal stake in the Company and help
motivate them to optimize their future performance and efficiency
to the Group and/or to reward them for their past contributions,
to aftract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going re|oﬁonships
with such eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or
success of the Group, and additionally in the case of executives, to
enable the Group to atfract and retain individuals with experience
and ability and/or to reward them for their past contributions.

Participants of the scheme

The Board may grant options to any person being a director
(including independent non-executive director], employee,
shareholder, supplier, customer, consultant, business partner and
adviser of any member of the Group.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all opfions to be granfed under the 2020 Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of the
Listing Date. Subject to as provided in the 2020 Option Scheme,
the Company may seek approval from its shareholders in a
general meetfing fo refresh the 10% limit (not exceeding 10% of
the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of approval by
the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting) and grant
options beyond such 10% limit, but the total number of shares which
may be issued under the 2020 Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group must not exceed 30% of the number of shares
in issue from fime to fime.
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Maximum entitlement of each participant

No option may be granted to any one eligible person such that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and fo be granfed to that person in any 12-month
period exceeds 1% of the number of shares in issue of the Company
from time to time. The Company may seek approval from its
shareholders in a general meeting to grant options fo the eligible
person exceeding 1% of the shares in issue of the Company in 12
month period up to and including the date of such further grant.

Period of the share to be taken up under an option
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance
by the eligible person concerned for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer upon payment of HK$ 1.0 for each grant of options.

Minimum holding period of an option

Subject to the terms and conditions in the 2020 Option Scheme,
the Board may determine there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised and no performance
target which needs to be achieved by the grantee before the option
can be exercised.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular option shall be
such price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at
the time of grant of the relevant option but the subscription price
shall not be less than whichever is highest of (1) the nominal value
of the shares; (2) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the offer date; and
(3) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five business days (as
defined in the Listing Rules) immediately preceding the date of offer.
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Life of 2020 Option Scheme

The 2020 Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from the date of adoption. During FY2020, no share
options under the 2020 Option Scheme were granted, exercised

and lapsed.
Details of outstanding

are as follows:

and movement of share opfions under the

2011 Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2020

20205 B R R BRI PR

T

20208 BBt EI R AR M A HES 105
HEARA R R2020 RFE - 2020F B X
BEFEETHERBRBERD THEIKRM -

HZE2020F12A31BIEFE - 201 1 FEBRKR
BB TRTENBREREZEGNFBD

As at
As at 1 January Grant during  Lapsed during 31 December
Grantees Date of grant Exercise price 2020 the period the period 2020
#2020%
AREA R AH T W2020F1A1H RERE REBAXK 12A31H
Director
=
Zhang Cuiwei 26 June 2014 note 4 HK$1.737 1,731,663 = = 1,731,663
REM 20146 R26H fisEa 1737387
12 January 2015 note 5 HK$1.649 2,424,329 = = 2,424,329
2015%1 7120 (RN 1.6497%8 T
Zhang Mian 15 Apiil 2019 note 8 HK$0.1172 28,320,827 - - 28,320,827
£} 2019F4A15H HiEs 0117287
Other
Hity
Other employess 9 June 2014 note 3 HK$1.737 3,290,160 - - 3,290,160
Hitgg 2014%56A9AR (EX] 1737587
26 June 2014 note 4 HK$1.737 1,731,663 = = 1,731,663
2014567261 FisEa 1737587
30 December 2014 note 6 HK$1.634 4,848,657 - - 4,848,657
2014128308 M6 1,634
12 January 2015 note 5 HK$1.649 2,424,329 = = 2,424,329
2015% 14128 IEN) 1.6497%8 T
23 November 2017 note 7 HK$0.0972 47,200,000 - - 47,200,000
2017118238 M7 0.0972% T
15 Apiil 2019 note 8 HK$0.1172 169,924,962 = = 169,924,962
2019F4A15H fi5E8 0.1172587
Former Direcfor and employee 4 November 2011 nofe 1,2 HK$7.967 1,350,697 - - 1,350,697
MEFRER 2011411 A48 FisE1,2 796757
263,247 287 S S 263,247,287
Vested at end of period 263,247,287 263,247,287

RBREE
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Note:

1. On 24 May 2012, the Board passed a resolution that these options shall
confinue to be vested and be exercisable until the expiry of the option pericd
regardless of these grantees ceased to be a Director or an employee of the
Company.

2. The options were divided info three tranches exercisable from 4 November

2011, 4 November 2012 and 4 November 2013 to 3 November 2021.

3. The options were exercisable from 9 June 2014 to 8 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive)

4. The options were exercisable from 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024 (both dates

inclusive).

5. The options were exercisable from 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
[both dates inclusive).

6. The options were exercisable from 30 December 2014 to 18 December 2024

(both dates inclusive).

7. The options were exercisable from 23 November 2017 to 22 November 2027

(both dates inclusive)

8. The options were exercisable from 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029 (both dates

inclusive)

9. The Company recorded the fair value of these share opfions as staff cost in the
income statement. The Company will record the nominal value of the shares
which is HK$0.01 per share issued pursuant to the exercise price of the share
options as additional share capital and the Company will record the excess of
the exercise price of the share options over nominal value of the shares in its
share premium account. Any share options which has lapsed or been cancelled

will be deducted from the balance of the share options.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the service contracts with Directors, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered or

existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions disclosed in note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements, no contract of significance
in relation fo the business of the Group, to which the Company,
its holding companies, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from
the Group's business that competes or competed or is or was likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up fo and
including the date of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

At any time during the year ended 31 December 2020, there were
no connected transactions or confinuing connected transactions

14A of the Llisting

Rules, which are required to comply with any of the reporting,

of the Company as defined under Chapter

announcement or independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Llisting Rules. None of the related party transactions
constituted a connected transaction or continuing connected
fransaction which should be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company, the Directors, managing Direcfors, alternate Directors,
auditors, secretary and other officers, for the time being, acting
in relation to the affairs of the Company, shall be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or susfain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in
or omitted in or about the exertion of their duty.

The permitted indemnity provision is currently in force for the benefit
of the Directors as defined and required by Section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance and has been in force throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Company has not arranged for
appropriafe insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect fo legal actions against its Directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities. The reasons for this decision is
elaborated on page 23 of the corporate governance report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are sef
out in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries or holding
company or subsidiary of the holding company has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to the Share
Option Scheme, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreements that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
or [ii] require the Company fo enter info any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares during the year ended
31 December 2020 or had subsisted at the end of year ended 31
December 2020.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The shares of the Company were listed on 18 March 2011
main board of the Stock Exchange. Based on publicly available

on the

information and fo the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information
and belief, the Company has maintained sufficient public float
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this report of directors under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Elite Partners CPA
limited who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment in the forthcoming annual general meetfing of the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which consists of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, has reviewed the Group's
consolidated financial stafements for the year ended 31 December
2020, including the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed with auditors in relation fo the infernal
control and financial reporting matters of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Cuiwei

Executive Director

29 March, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
1R E5HEh¥RS

elite
- partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the shareholders of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continved in Bermuda with

limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages /1 to 151, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the Infernational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ["HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

FEESAREEZERERAF

BHETABREXZRERIAFIMCEKR
(REASHESFMATIRAREFENER
2 A])

=R
BHMEEABERE/NZISTEFREARE
TRERARLRENBAR (i [E5E])
ZEEHKmE  BEN2020612A3182
REMBARR BEZBLFEZHEARE
aRhAEtrEEaR RAEREFRLE
ERERNEXR URGEAMBHERRME (R
EZGBERME) -

BAPRR KAV BRIREER G ER
B ((BReHERNEEE ) BH 2 EHEK
MREE ((ERMEREER]DEEM
REWRBET BEHEEMN2020F12A31H
ZEHEAMBRAARL BEEEHEZBLF
EZHReEMBRARGARESRE YER
REABRAGPIIZHREREZREE -
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BPCREETESFMAG ([EESER
g BEMzEREFER ([FEEFEL])
ETE - BRMANZFENAZENEEER
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
HRETER

BREETER
FRBFTASBRERMANEXZHE N
MEFAMGEEMBERRITREENER-
BPAEEFBERBEAVBRRAMR LK E
AREREHEFER MIAERUEFTRES
BRER-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHNESANMAEEZEE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets

ME - BERRE ERAREEUAREFEENRE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB173,904,000,
right-of-use assefs of approximately RMB2,185,000
and a mining right classified as an intangible assefs
of approximately RMB39,756,000 relating to the
Group's cash-generating unit (the "CGU") regarding
sale of marble and marble-related products. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, no impairment loss
had been recognised on the Group's property, plant
and equipment, rightof-use assets and intangible assefs
respectively. Details are sef out in notes 17, 19 and 18
to the consolidated financial statements.
R2020F12A31H EEENYE BE KR
BWHARMI173,904,000t EREEEDARE
2,185,000t kD B RENEENRKBRHOARRE
39,756,000t 98 EBEEEAMEERNEALK
BOMHEERNREASBL([REELEM])
B -BE2020612A31BIEFE Y ES X
MYE - BELRE ERREEARELEES
FIRRREBERE FRAFBEHNGET B RERME
17-19K18 -

The Group had engaged an independent valuer to
assist the management of the Company in esfimating
the recoverable amount of the CGU which requires
significant judgment to be made by the management of
the Company.

EEEEZE 2B UGEMBE BERAREEE
HAEm BERAREEEFRLEAHENRESELS
{7 7] W [B] & BB 4 Ak e

64 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

Our procedures in relation to the management's
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets included the following:
BRREEBHNR BERXBEURBLEED
BEFEARTHEFEEATEE:

- Obtained cash flow forecasts prepared by the
management of the Company and assessed
the reasonableness of the methodology and
assumptions used for the preparation of the
forecasts (e.g. estimated reserves of mineral, sales
volume, unit selling price, estimated expenses and
discount rate etc.):

- ESHh EQAREEEREMNBRaRERA
TEFERUEBAN(PIMGARERE HE
B HEEB BARAXRIRXF)MAITE
REBROEGEN:

- Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of an independent valuer and the method
used for estimating the recoverable amount of the
CGU;

- RIEBMEEMNERKT EORTHEUAR
hErReELEU RN SEMANTE:
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Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BRETSE @

How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

EMNETNMMEEZEE (&)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (Continued)

ME BERRE ERAREEUAREFEENREL (8

We had identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment, rightof-use assefs and infangible
assetfs relating to the CGU as a key audit matter
because significant management judgment was used in
determining key assumptions.
BMEBREBECELBELURENYE BEER
wEREEENRBERNEENRENGERS —EH
REAEE REAREEERNT TERMEREAIE
e

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

B 7 W OR KR E S

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade
receivables of approximately RMB78,852,000, net of
allowance for credit losses.

R2020F12A31H ES£EEZFERKRFRENER
}\Em78,852,000ﬁ(? BREEEREMEG) -

HE S AREERARA T

- Discussed with the independent valuer the
appropriateness of the methodology and
assumptions used in estimating the recoverable
amount of the CGU and performed certain
procedures fo assess data and assumptions used in
the valuation; and

- HBUVMGMEMSRGEFREELABCAIREE
BRAINHDERBRONBEL LHTET
RFEFEEETANSRERRR &

- Checked, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of calculation of the recoverable amount
of the CGU.

- WMEZRERSELBMANKREESESAE AN
BEERE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on trade receivables as at 31 December
2020 included:

B EREEN2020F12A318 8 5 B KK IE
FTERRENTEMATHREFE2EATSIE:

- Understood and evaluated the key controls that the
Group has implemented to manage and monitor its
credit risk, and validated the control effectiveness
on a sample basis;

- TRIFE EEEREBRREZHGERR
i B He #7852 122 I 4 pE I AR SRR B
M

- Checked, on a sample basis, the aging profile of
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 to
the underlying financial records and post yearend
sefilements to bank receipts;

- HMERZER2020F12A318E B WKRIEN
FREEBELEBRAMBRERFAEBRNRITE
P H#EWIE:
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How the matter was addressed in our audit (Continued)

BEMNBFNAEEZSE (R

Key Audit Matter (Continued)
BRETSE @

Impairment assessment on trade receivables (Continued)

B 5 B WROR KR E R (80

Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency
of provision for impairment based on information
including credit profile of different customers, aging
of the trade receivables, historical settlement records,
subsequent seftlement status, expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and on-
going trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking information
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order fo esfimate the expected
credit losses for the impairment assessment.
EEERBITAZPEARRI &5 EWHKENK
B’oOBERERSE REGEERAR RERGEHER
MERERELREBELERBEPNBERSIBERS
ENHEZRKRFENTKREERRERENT R
HETERAFE - ERENERARETFEER
AEEBEROENERTZENARMEER  UMEE
MEFENEREEER-

We had identified impairment of trade receivables as
a key audit matter because significant judgments had
to be made for the assessment of impairment under the
expected credit loss model.
BAMCHEAEIRERBAZRER BBRESF
B REARAFHERHEAFEARBEEREE
BTN ZRE-
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Inquired of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as af
year end and corroborated explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
understood on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checked
historical and subsequent sefflement records of and
other correspondence with the customers; and
MEEEERAFANFEACARNIEXRE
ZRERRKENRRT N BEEEZEEEED
BE NREXSGTHTRETPOREED
MR ZERATPHNELREREELCHLE
fbs@aR : K

Assessed the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology, examined the
key data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenged the
assumptions, including both historical and forward-
looking information, used to determine the expected
credit losses.

MG REREERRBRENT AREEE
MERETIZRMABBUNEERTER LT
B VTHANEETRACERENRR (B
FEsMAEEER)REEE -
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Other Information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is moferio”y inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. I,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such infernal control
as the directors defermine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend fo liquidate the Group or fo cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

FEESAREEZERERAF

Hib &R

EERAHAMENAZEX -HMENBE
FHEIAENEN ETREEAVBR
REEFUE L FEARS -

BMEGEMBRREFENERLRERE
ER - AT HEMERBRETAEADH

T 4k A
jfzﬁﬂ/%n afg ©

MBSV BREAME RANEEREH
BEMEN EHERT ZEEMEHNES
B AW BERRARMEETBRETFEITN
BRBFEEATH XEBREBAIRFEEANE
AR -HEBRPIERETKHO TIER B E
MEMHBRERERRL RPAREZSE
BB Y EBARENETIER

EENRETZEENGESUBRRA
AENEE

EXAAARBERE ENEFTERMN
BRMBREEAREERARG 2 WER
ERBEEMAANGAYBRR - LEE
EERRRERAMBERRALFENERNR
MEZE UNERABESAVBRRTIEFER
REFFR R ME MM E R R -

ERBEGEMBHRERE EFARATE &
SESELENRE N YIRBERASELEER
MOER(NER) KRIAEFTHAER BEER
BER HELEE SRBZIHNABEEMGE
BRATHORE CREFERAUSERLE
RERHEL-
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our obijectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always defect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriafe fo provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

i Obtain an understanding of infernal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

68  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to confinue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up fo the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease fo continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in o manner that
achieves fair presentafion.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and fo communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
defermine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

HE S AREERARA T
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The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Ho Kwan with practising cerfificate
number: PO7543.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021

10/F, 8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

70 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FolEaNEMEANGSE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020F12A31H IEFE

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt E AR®T R ARETT
REVENUE ' ON 8 72,765 65,689
Cost of sales 5 AR (65,864) 61,260)
Gross profit E 7 6,901 4,429
Other income and gains, net H At W A B 25 7% #R Q 142 767
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary BUEEMM B R A 2 &8 38 = (1,117)
Selling and distribution expenses HE &9 HX (1,941) (2,458)
Impairment loss under expected BHEEBBEATZ
credit loss model BB 18 10 (14,446) (28,234
Administrative expenses THRX (20,469) 41,721)
Finance costs B 75 B 7R 11 (636) (171)
LOSS BEFORE TAX MREBATES B 12 (30,449) (68,505)
Income fax expenses FIEHiF < 14 - =
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EATREBEAEBEFESE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY (30,449) (68,505)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hith2mE (F5E) WA
ltem that will not be reclassified FTEEHS EEBENIER:
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of  BEIAE G INE R E LR E H Z58
foreign operations (3,990) 3,847
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EAREEAEBLEE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR THEBEEH
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (34,439) (64,658)
LOSS PER SHARE (RMB cents) SRER(AR%S)
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 15 (1.1) (2.4)

FEESAREEZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
tRe R FSHA

As at 31 December 2020 7202041283 1H

2020 2019
2020% 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ERN NN 17 173,904 178,732
Intangible assets B EAE 18 39,756 41,744
Rightof-use assefs FREEE 19 2,185 3,878
Prepayment SCENE ] 24(a) 51,330 51,330
267,175 275,684
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 22 363 363
Trade receivables =) 1 & 23 78,852 59,368
Prepayment, deposits and BNRE ZER
other receivables H W IR 24(b) 4,208 3,774
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEEEY 25 4,254 49,022
87,677 112,527
CURRENT LIABILITIES HREBEaE
Trade payables g 5N IR 26 8,998 558
Llease liabilities HEAE 27 624 1,429
Other payables and accruals H A e~ kIR N EET B A 28 18,500 18,167
Amounts due to directors B E S A 29 6,294 5,586
Other loans HEMER 30 3,867 -
Provision for litigation A 31 - 10,601
38,283 36,341
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEZFEE 49,394 76,186
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERABER
LIABILITIES 316,569 351,870

72 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2020 722020 12831H

e IINRE

2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR¥ TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 179 1,041
Provision for rehabilitation EER B 32 2,697 2,697
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 21 608 608
3,484 4,346
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 313,085 347,524
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRHE
Equity attributable to owners of KAREAAEGESR
the Company
Share capital fi& A 33 24,435 24,435
Reserves Gk 34 288,650 323,089
TOTAL EQUITY HRER 313,085 347,524

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2021 and are

signed on its behalf by:

RFEVBRREN2021FIA0BEEEE
HEREETE ITHTINEFAREE:

Zhang Cuiwei

FEESAREEZERERAF

REMH
Director

55

Zhang Weijun
REE
Director

55

2020 3R 73



CUNSULIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

SiEEENE

Foreign
currency
Share Share  Contributed ~ Share opfion franslation Retained

capital  premium* reserve” reserve* reserve™ profits*  Total equity

HEBRE
BE  ROEE* AARE BRERH* @ RERN ags
RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

[Note 34] (Note 34)
(HzE34)  (BFaE34)
Asat 1 Jonuary 2019 H201951R18 24,435 221,144 14,480 25,115 (2,227) 118,281 401,228
Loss for the year FERE = = = S S 168,505] 168,505)
Other comprehensive loss HEzEBE = = - - 3,847 - 3,847
Totol comprehensive loss cABELE = = = = 3847 (68,505) (64,658
Grant of share options X e - - - 10,954 - - 10,954
As ot 31 December 2019 and as af T January 2020 #®2019512A31B RN2020F1A18 24,435 221,144 14,480 36,069 1,620 49776 347,524
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - - (30,449)  (30,449)
Other comprehensive loss Bt 2EER - - - - (3,990) - 3,990)
Total comprehensive loss rEEBREE - - - - (3,990)  (30,449) (34,439
As at 31 December 2020 #2020%12A318 24,435 221,144 14,480 36,069 (2,370) 19,327 313,085
*  These reserve accounfs comprise the consolidated reserves in ZERBEREBEEAMBARRRMINN
the consolidated statement of financial position. e

74 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HelREREE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020F12A31H IEFE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREET T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETH
Loss before tax MR AT ES 18 (30,449) (68,505)
Adjustments for: HATRBEELFHE:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB LRETE 4,678 12,074
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEESENTE 1,506 1,392
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEBHE 1,988 1,988
Loss/[gain) on disposal of property, HEWE BERREZ
plant and equipment BB () 150 (414)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FLE P RUGRIRTER Z
trade receivables A EE 14,446 28,200
Impairment loss recognised in respect of A H A R W TR IR R 3R
other receivables WEER - 34
loss on deregistration of a subsidiary BUHGEMM B LR Z 18 - 1,117
Exchange loss/(gain) fE 5 EE () 11 (10)
Gain on early termination of lease R IETHE 2 Was (69) (10)
[Reversal of provision)/provision for litigation A (BERE) BE (3,401) 9,401
Interest expenses MEMX 636 171
Interest income FLEIA M (1
Equity-setiled share-based payments expenses Tﬂb/*zi%b(ﬁxf
PN Ffﬁi - 10,954
Operating cash flows before movements HEEREPNZ
in working capital KEBRERE (10,505) (3,609)
Decrease in inventories FERD - 6
Increase in trade receivables 2 5 I YR IE G AN (34,085) (14,927)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayment, BNRE ek
deposits and other receivables H th fE M /I8
() R (456) 139
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B 5 A RIEE I,
ORA) 8,440 (1,256)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals — E fth FE A 5/ I8 K& fE 5T
BAEM ORD) 658 (426)
Decrease in provision for litigation AR (7,200) -
Net cash used in operating activities RETHFFARESFR (43,148) (20,073)

FEESAREEZERERAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS G IREMSEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEYE BB MRE (6,326) (2,622)
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEVME BEEREZ
plant and equipment PSR 6,314 487
Additions fo right-of-use assefs RNECAEEE - (320)
Proceed on deregistration of a subsidiary BUH LA B R R 2
PSR - (4)
Interest received AR 1 1
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFMARSER (11) (2,458)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEES
Repayment of lease liabilities HEAEEN (1,499) (1,557)
Interest paid ERAE - (2)
Advance from a director EEAN 1,093 4,665
Advance from other loans HEMERBR 4,055 =
Net cash generated from financing activities METHREREFHR 3,649 3,106
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND REeERReZEYWE
CASH EQUIVALENTS R (39,510) (19,425)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of RBEMN2BEE R
the reporting period ReEEY 49,022 65,058
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXRFEH TR (5,258) 3,389
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RBEHRZEER
AT THE END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD REZEY 4,254 49,022

76 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS G IREMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as

MERDEEZEBHERNT:

follow:
lease  Amounts due
liabilities to directors Other loans Total
HERE ENESRE HtEX @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARET T ARET T ARET T
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%12A31H - 831 - 831
Application of IFRS 16 [EF BIRR B FS SRS E B 1 657 1,853 - - 1,853
As at 1 January 2019 R2019%F1 A1H 1,853 831 - 2,684
Cash flows: RemeE:
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBREER (1,559 - - (1,559
Advance from a director EEEE - 4,665 - 4,665
Other non-cash movements: HEIFReEe):
Additions fo rightof-use assefs REFRHEEE 3,085 - - 3,085
Finance cost IR AR 92 - - 92
Early termination of lease RAKLIAEE (1,005 - - (1,005
Exchange differences ERER 4 90 - 94
As at 31 December 2019 and R2019F12A31H K
as at 1 January 2020 #2020%1 A1H 2,470 5,586 - 8,056
Cash flows: BemeE:
Repayment of lease liabilities HEREER (1,499 - - (1,499
Advance from a director BEEEX - 1,093 - 1,093
Advance from other loans EERBER = - 4,055 4,055
Other non-cash movements: HiEHRe&8):
Additions to right-of-use assets NEFREEE 1,054 - - 1,054
Finance cost AR /7 = = 77
Early termination of lease RAIRILTEE (1,239) - - (1,239
Exchange differences BN ERE [60] (385) (188) (633)
As at 31 December 2020 M2020F12H31H 803 6,294 3,867 10,964
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n e Bl B ¥R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020612A318 ILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries [collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the production and sale of marble
and marble related products, mainly in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"). There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
under the Companies law, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands on
29 March 2010 and changed its domicile to Bermuda with
limited liability on 10 August 2016. The registered office
address of the Company is Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Homilton HM12, Bermuda. The principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong is located at Unit 14, 18/F,
Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company has ifs shares listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 18 March
2011.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Renminbi ("RMB'O0Q0"), unless otherwise
stated.

Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$") is the functional currency of the
Company. The direcfors (the “Directors”) consider RMB is the
appropriate presentation currency for the users of the Group's
consolidated financial statements as the functional currency of
the Company's major subsidiaries in the PRC are RMB.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 55 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Internafional Financial Reporting Standards
[“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the
Stock Exchange and by the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinances ("HKCO"), Cap.622.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideratfion given in exchange for goods and services.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO IFRSs

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
fo References fo the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
and the following amendments to IFRSs issued by the ISAB
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to IAS 1 and Definition of Material
IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 3

Definition of Business

Amendments to IFRS @,
IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and the amendments
to IFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the
Croup's financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl 55 ¥R 2% b 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 3.
TO IFRSs (Continued)
New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not
yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and

JE FH BT w1 Mo 2846 5T 19 % B 5 i
#eH (m)
EEMEEARERZHITRLEITER
B3 3R & R
AEBUTERFERNUTE BMEM®EK
M2 AT RS FT BB B 7S 3k & 22 A -

amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

80

effective:
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the BRI EERNE 75 RS 4 RIAE8
related Amendments’ &7l
Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent BRI R EEREI65  COVID-1948@HA
Concessions* Z1EE] TER
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual BRI mELEREIR  HEERE
Framework? ZAER] e
Amendments to IFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — BIFR B AR5 Q25 0% - FIREENRE -
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 Phase 2° R R FE 305 B RRERS
and IFRS 16 BB B RS R 755
B R B 7 R 5 AR B B 45
R BB B 7 R 5 42 B
B0 2B
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Confribution of Assets BRI RS ERE105E REFREBE
and IAS 28 between an Investor and its RER et 2R E28% RAEIREE D
Associate or Joint Venture® Z1EET XM EED
EFEAS
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as REHERE IR BT BEEIEAR
Current or Non-current! Bk IERE
Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment — B & atERIF 165 ERNEZ G
Proceeds before Intended Use? Z1E5T wB-HEAR
Al 2 P15 5k 182
Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of B s £/ E375% BEEAN-E
Fulfilling a Contract? ZERT KA
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements fo IFRSs BRI BRELEN B BEERBEREE
2018 -20202 BI2018F &
2000FE v F &
BUE?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

! R20234F1 A1 AR ZKFRH)F R R ER -

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. g M202261 R B 2 4 FRMMEE BRER -
E Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer a date to be E WEE BB BRKEFE R AR
determined.

The Directors anticipate that the application of new and
amendments fo IFRSs will have no material impact on the

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
e has power over the investee;
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable refurns from its

involvement with the investee: and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its refurns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the dafe the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continved

Changes in the Group's interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assefs and
liabilities of that subsidiary are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between |(i] the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill], and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the
owners of the Company.

Foreign currency

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
fransactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetfary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
refranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was defermined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of hisforical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the setflement of monetary
items, and on the refranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's operations
are franslated info the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency franslation reserve.

China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued|
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straightline method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 10—20 years
Plant and machinery 5—15 years
Office equipment 5 years

leasehold improvement Over the lease term

Motor vehicles 4—10 years

Construction in progress intended to be used for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
consfruction in progress is classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assefs,
on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment,
commences when they are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected fo arise from the confinved use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or refirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

FEESAREEZERERAF

fn & Al 75 ¥R 2= Pid 53

4.

R FEOR ()

ME- - BERRE

BREZIREIIN UE- BEARBIZKAX
BEBZFFWERRFTHERBE (0F)
R E VB R KT -

FTEDRUNEBRZEIREEMGFTARERSE
HAMBEEERA (EMBRMKEER)M
BR-GAAERER RREERFTE
TERERERR T AR ERMEE
B ERRAFBEREAKR -BFH
EREHIT:

B’F 10E 204
R M 25 CEINE:S
MR RE 5%
HEMEEE R
"E 4ZE 105

BRAFLE HEXTHAENERZT
REAXAREFACERABREEBEERE-
RAEABREXERAR (MTEERNEKE
HHEEMS )IRBASESHARRE
FEMEER RN - BEHAERTIERRT
RAEREREED>EREEBINY
X BEARZRE ZFEENAERTA
ERZEEMYE BERREHERDN
EERBHERE

ME - BELRBERENEE LAY
BRERAZEETSELERKLEN &
HEMELAMNETAKRENERLR L EM
SREREERAEZCHANZRETE

W8 s R o

2020 3R 83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81 #% $h 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coniinced BEOREHHBOR ()

Stripping costs B A

Stripping costs incurred during the production phase are —MimE R EEMRRE SO REK AR

generally considered to create two benefits, being either the BRREERMBEMNR BEEFE HRE

production of inventory or improved access to the ore fo be #EA B R B R RIEIS A B8 - i % F A

mined in the future. Where the benefits are realised in the form BEHAUNMEEFENSAER A

of inventory produced in the period, the production stripping EEHRRNAARRBEEZSFENK

costs are accounted for as part of the cost of producing those ey —EB5 -

inventories.

Where the benefits are realised in the form of improved access ez F N 2 A E A B & R RIES

fo ore to be mined in the future, the costs are recognised as BENTAER A ABEKRNER R

a stripping activity asset and is accounted for as an addition EBEBE - WEME A TERR AR

fo, or an enhancement of, the ‘Mining Infrastructure’ in the BEAVBEMRARZ IRBEE] AL

consolidated statement of financial position if the following FAR T

criteria are met:

[a) it is probable that the future economic benefit (improved o) HEEFSH BB RBREEMZS (GEA
access to the ore body) associated with the stripping BERHBESINE)BAIRRA
activity will flow to the entfity; ZER:

(b)  the entity can identify the component of the ore body for b) ZERUMANBEETREENZSHD
which access has been improved; and Mo R

[c]  the costs relating to the stripping activity associated with (c) RERMSEMETERZE DB ZHK
that component can be measured reliably. EEN BB -

Other production stripping cosfs are charged fo the profit or Hofh A R ER A AN EE A B ET A B R B

loss as operating costfs as they are incurred. BRI -

The stripping activity asset is initially measured af cost, which K EBEEVN T UARANGE  ZKATS

is the accumulation of costs directly incurred to perform RUEEBANESBONEABEMET

the stripping activity that improves access to the identified MEEEBMEREELENRFTAE N E

component of ore, plus an allocation of directly attributable BHEEIEE IR A

overhead cosfs.

If the costs of the inventory produced and the stripping activity WPTEEFEOKRA R KR ESEE T

asset are not separately identifiable, a relevant production SDREHZMN AAMBEEEFEEMEET

measure is used to allocate the production stripping costs BERHEORB A E 2 B9 Bl 4 B IR R

between the inventory produced and the stripping activity ZEEGFEDNRDCHMNBESHEOMAE

assef. This production measure is calculated for the identified WAREBRIEERKMFNRINEB R

component of the ore body and is used as a benchmark to EOEL AEEEERRROEY SR

identify the extent to which the additional activity of creating BHMOEER "BEELNBEREDWEE

a future benefit has taken place. The Group uses the expected L

volume of waste extracted compared with the actual volume

for a given volume of ore production of each component.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Stripping costs (Confinued)

The stripping activity asset is subsequently depreciated using
the unit of production ["UOP") method over the life of the
identified component of the ore body that became more
accessible as a result of the stripping activity. The stripping
activity asset is then carried af cost less depreciafion and any

impairment losses.

Mining rights

Mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses. Mining rights include the cost
of acquiring mining licenses, exploration and evaluation
costs transferred from exploration rights and assefs upon
determination that an exploration property is capable of
commercial production, and the cost of acquiring inferests in
the mining reserves of existing mining properties. The mining
rights are amortised over the estimated useful lives of the
mines, in accordance with the production plans of the enfities
concerned and the proved and probable reserves of the mines
using the UOP method. Mining rights are written off to profit
or loss if the mining property is abandoned.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
fime in exchange for considerafion.

For confracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the confract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the

non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Shortterm leases and leases of low-valve assets

fm S A 5 ¥R 2= Pl 53

HREFHBOR 2
HE@wm
KEBERBEEBA (8)
HHHEREEEEHE

HNEBERERBEFRI2ZEAXE
RETEEEEERENAENEHEE
AEEEREHEHERRAR 2L A& E
NHEREEEENERRERR 2 -
HEELRRKEEEEMENHENTR
BEHOENARANER SR -

The Group applies the shortterm lease recognition exemption
to leases of leased properties that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. lease payments on
shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straightline basis over the lease term.

Rightofuse assets EHEEE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: FHREEENABIE:
° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease ° HEBBENVIBRITESE:
liability;
o any lease payments made at or before the . RBEERKB B2/ 1ER AT M
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; HENFT BREMBRENTMNEE
BE:
®  any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and s AXAEEBEELENEMAVREEKSE:
&
®  an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in s AEERHKBELABHREBEE &

RIEBEEMEMIEHEBEER
JR 2= M B R R B AR P AR E B9 R A
2 A B fh AR o

dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

£ A48 B B 1= B AN RUAE A R 51 3 & NORl
EBEERFE ANBEEABZENTE

remeasurement of lease liabilities. EH A

Right-of-use assefs are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any

AREHERKAERETSNEHABA
EEEMAENERABEEMS A%
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Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assefs at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, rightof-use assets are
depreciated on a straightline basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued|

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the inferest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments [including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable; and

®  paymenfs of penaliies for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option fo
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4.

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation
Income tfax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assefs arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporfing period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is seftled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
fo recover or sefile the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate fo items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are deftermined on a weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises raw
materials, direct labour and proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for invenfories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary fo make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assefs are recognised and derecognised on a frade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within the fime
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with custfomers which are initially measured in accordance
with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
fo the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added 1o or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on inifial
recognition.

The effective inferest method is a method of calculating the
amortfised cost of a financial assef or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
lincluding all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, fransaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial |iobi|if\/, or where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (confinued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the confractual terms give rise on specified dates fo cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated creditimpaired financial assefs,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become creditimpaired. For financial assefs that have
subsequently become creditimpaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rafe to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the creditimpaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer creditimpaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that
the asset is no longer creditimpaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

Financial instruments (Continved)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit losses ("ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables and cash and
cash equivalents) which are subject to impairment under IFRS
Q. The amount of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting
period fo reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events

In confrast,

that are possible within

period. Assessment are done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the end of reporting period as

well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables without significant financing components. The
ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with

significant balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss

allowance equal to

has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &=

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4,

Financial instruments (Continved)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

[i}  Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of each reporting period with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

®  an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’'s external (if available) or
internal credit rafing;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

®  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
fo cause a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations;

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

®  an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &=

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved 4.

Financial instruments (Continved)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i} Significant increase in credit risk (Continved)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full {without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
720 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 55 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4.

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Creditimpaired financial assets

A financial asset is creditimpaired when one or more
events that have a defrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is creditimpaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) @ breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
confractual reasons relating fo the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered info bankruptey
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner.

Financial assets written off may sfill be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, faking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4.

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
defermined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
confractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects fo receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate defermined at initial recognition.

For collective assessment, the Group takes info
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Nature of financial instruments:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit rafings where available.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is creditimpaired, in which case inferest income is

calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 55 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continved
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v} Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of frade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognised a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flow from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assef to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definition of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by group entities are
recognised af the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables
and accruals, amounts due to directors and other loans are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Confinved)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
fransferred fo the customer.

A performance obligafion represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

e  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e  the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to fransfer
goods or services to a cusfomer for which the Group has
received consideration {or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% ¥k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continved)
Revenue from sale of marble and marble reloted products
are recognised at a point in time. This is the time when legal
assignment is completed which is the time when the control
of the goods has transferred, being when the goods have
been delivered to the customer’s specific location. Certain
percentage of advance payments received from cusfomers
pursuant fo the respective sales contracts before the control
of goods are passed to the customers. A contract liability
is recognised for sales in which revenue has yet been
recognised. The normal credit term is 30 to Q0 days from the
date of billing.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group contfributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assefs of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed in

the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required fo participate in a cenfral pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required fo contfribute a certain percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

No forfeited contributions were available o the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions and the Group does
not have any defined benefit plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81 #% $h 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Employee benefits (Continved)

Shortterm and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
ferm employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another IFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
[such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except fo the extent that another IFRS requires
or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instrumenfs at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-seftled share-based payments
defermined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventuo”y vest, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve). At the
end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. For share options that vest
immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions (Continved)

Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
fransferred fo refained profits.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in the profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group's most senior executive management for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of
the Group's various lines of business in different geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of productions
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used fo
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
maijority of these criteria.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended fo compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

Government grants (Contined)

Government grants related to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “Other income and gains, net”.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assefs and infangible assets, to defermine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to defermine the exfent of
any impairment loss. Where it is not possible fo estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
["CGU") to which the asset belongs. In testing a CGU for
impairment, corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
CGU when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable amount
is determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
fo the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% ¥k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved) 4.  FERETFHBUR ()
Impairment of property, plant and equipment, NE BERRE ERABEER

right-of-use assets and intangible assets (Confinved) BREEERE®)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated MEE (KIBEELENM) ZMEFHT Y E
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of THREREEE MEE (IREELEE
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. M)ZEEESABREEATKE -5t
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which KRR eE " BEEIREERSELEES
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to VO EREEXAHICEEE K&
a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group g -—EENNReELSUKREE
of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the corporate (BREEIEEZEREELESELN D
assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of XEEXRIFOCXEENREE) BZ
CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs. In ERETEABUNARESE RSB
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated BEEBEER BERBReEEEMK
first to reduce the carrying amount the assets on a prorata ReELBNAENANSEENKREER
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit OB A EENBREERS RRERBRE -
or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an assef is BEFHEIMTSHREZERE AR ER
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of HEKRA (WAt E) EAEE (A
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and BEE)REEF2ERE AENEREZ
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise BHEENREEEHTE REOHER
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rafa to the ZENIZRcELBEVEANNE®BE
other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment E-RmEBRNKEXNEBERPER-

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying MR ERBEERERBE  MZEEE (X
amount of the asset {or CGU or a group of CGUs) is ReEFEBNK—HBeEEEN)D
increased fo the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, FEHESEMNELETNMGETRD S
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed BOEBEZEMNMENEREEETNSFSERZ
the carrying amount that would have been determined had BEEE(KHeELEU —HREE
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset [or CGU or HFEN)BRRBEFELTERERRME
a group of CGUs| in prior years. A reversal of an impairment BRERFETHNREE- - BEFBEZEDAR
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss. R B HE AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to sefle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligafion.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to setfle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risk and uncerfainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to seftle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their original
condition, as required by the ferms and conditions of the
lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease at
the Directors’ best estimate of the expenditure that would be
required fo restore the assets. Estimates are regularly reviewed
and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% ¥k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contved) 4. B REFTEEK 2
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets FREERIREE

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from IABBREEABEEMHMALSIENE
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the T UHFEEFTREX-—FAZRENS
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncerfain future BEAETHRER MAEEIEEZZTE
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also ZH L ARABNRAIERRABES M3
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not HNBREEE EARARTTER
recognised because if is not probable that outflow of economic KRBEER BB AREAIEMTE
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot MARBEBAB-MERRTEZAREERE
be measured reliably. When a change in the probability of an MEHFAREERERAL AIXRAE
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be RHER R -

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past IREERABEETHMARELENE
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the EHFEEFTIXR FTIXZFREHSE
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future BEETEEBR MAEBAEET S
events not wholly within the control of the Group. When inflow ThHl-MEEEERKLBERRRA - BIHE
is virtually certain, an asset is recognised. RRBEE-
Related party transactions BEBL XS
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: ETIERT B@ALHERRER
SEA B
[a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is la) EAALTHEAFUOFAEUTE
related to the Group if that person: BN R ERAREE AR
(i) has control or joint control over the Group; i) HAEEHFZEHIESERIE
i) #
[i)  has significant influence over the Group; or (i) WAEBBERFE ) =%
i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) AAEBRFKXE N AR
the Group or the Group's parent. TEEHEAE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81 #% $h 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related party transactions (Continued)

4.

106

(b)

An entfity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
Group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is relafed to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity [or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a Group of which the other entfity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is confrolled or jointly controlled by a
person idenfified in (a);

a person identified in (al(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

A related party transaction is a fransfer of resources, services

or obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close family members of a person are those family members
who may be expected fo influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assefs and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and

depreciation

The Group defermines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual
values are different to those previously estimated, or it
will write-off or write-down fechnically obsolete or non-
strafegic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81 #% $h 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&
5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. AhEFASHRE E 1 Y BRI ()
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
(b) Estimated impairment of property, plant b) W%k BMERREB ERAEE
and equipment, right-of-use assets and EREFEENMETRE

intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, rightof-use assets and ME - BEERB ERAEEER
intangible assets are stated at costs less accumulated BEERKANRBITE R H
depreciation and amortisation and accumulated AR ZFHBEEBER (ME)JFEK- R
impairment losses, if any. In determining whether an BErEERARER NEBEAE
asset is impaired, the Group has fo exercise judgment B R mE TERRE: (1)~
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) BRENREVEEEBENETEN
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that HRITATE: ) EENERER:
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying DREMNSETRBESENSTHF O
amount of an asset can be supported by the recoverable REABEE ARBEHREBEEREE
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present value FHEFRKBERENFRME: X(3)
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the fET AT O & BRI R R R B B B
continued use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key BR ERAEREBRAIALEES D
assumptions to be applied in estimating the recoverable BB K- MAMEETENEE (B
amounts including cash flow projections and an REREEE) WA KRE 25 R
appropriate discount rate. VWhen it is not possible fo AEBERAEEMBRSELE
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset Ly FT Y Bl & %8 - B 2R AR R Ad 5t
[including right-of-use assets), the Group esfimates the (BERRERERAPHEIIRE XY
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the assets BEXR)AeHRENGEPEAN
belongs. Changing the assumptions and estimates, FEREEEEATE-

including the discount rates or the growth rate in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

(c) Mine reserves (c) BWILREE

Engineering estimates of the Group's mine reserves are MR AEBEBILUBEN TG
inherently imprecise and represent only approximate A REKRREER A G E &S
amounts because of the significant judgments involved BEAGE LW T ER WERKXE
in developing such information. There are authoritative WBE-MEFABLUBETRETE
guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that RIBFEIRIBEBIA - AFE A
have to be met before estimated mine reserves can IR ENERIES -EFE R
be designated as “proved” and “probable”. Proved gL DEZRZSELD
and probable mine reserve estimates are updated af THEEMRMERRELEHRE
regular infervals taking info account recent production ot AR EB AR R KA KT E
and technical information about each mine. In addition, FEE FELMBBLUGE M
as prices and cost levels change from year to vear, MEMES - LEBKE RS
the estimate of proved and probable mine reserves BOmME WA 28 LWimARE
also changes. This change is considered a change in BERMRRITRERBEREE
estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected on a BUEENMBSRAENTE REH
prospective basis in both depreciation and amortisation K- BLREEMFANESHTEBIFE
rates calculated on a UOP basis and the time period for MEEEMREHE -

discounting the rehabilitation provision. Changes in the
estimate of mine reserves are also taken into account in
impairment assessments of non-current assets.

108  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 8if #% ¥k 2% B 5%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&
5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. AhFHA#EE PR B EARYE o)
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(d) Provision of ECL of trade receivables d) EZRURENFEHEES
BEE

The Group’s trade receivables are assessed for REBE 5 WA TR BB BRI
impairment based on the expected loss model required BHmELERFEOR AL EBE N
by IFRS 9. The assessment made by management has TRERNE-EEEMRIEZTME
taken info account relevant historical information adjusted Dt kXA HERERERS 28
for forward looking information available to management 738 1 & B I B AT BE 1 B BHE L SR
at the date of assessment (to the extent that such B (EEHENBAEABEAEEA
information is reasonable and supportable without undue REBEUALBEHEAIESE) -
cost or effort]. Management has exercised judgment ERERNGFRSEEERECEE
in estimating the amount of expected credit loss. If the BEERAE -HMERERBRHRNE
actual outcome is different from management's estimate, BE MG A RRESBINRE
an additional impairment loss or reversal of impairment E BB BN EEE -

loss may arise.

(e) Provisions for rehabilitation e) BERE
Provision for rehabilitation is measured in accordance BRBEE IR REHRBIEHEE
with the relevant rules and regulations applicable in the RBEERRMERFTE LRA
PRC at the end of the reporting period, and using the TR e RENEEERNE
cash flows estimated to seftle the present obligation. lts F-EHEEEDZFHEERENR
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows B(MEKEHEENTEBELX) -

(where the effect of the time value of money is material.

() Provision for litigation (f) =FAEE
The management measured the provision for litigation EEERREEREREIZELR
in accordance with the legal opinion and relevant laws FERPEERZEBERNER
and regulation applicable in Hong Kong and the PRC at STERAAEE-
the end of the reporting period.
6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. FAR A B
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the REBEBEREERN UBRASEZE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while BEAARSBEEELE Y B BBLE
maximising the refurn to shareholders through the optimisation BhEREAZTFE BRREFBRKZKAED
of the debt and equity balance. o
During the reporting period, the capital structure of the Group REBEHHE AEE2EARERE SR
consists of debt which includes equity attributable to owners of ARAREAEAREEZ (EBRE#ET
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. BRARFER) AR ER - EFTEHERN
The Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. BARARB-EFRULEBEHNZ —HD EFZE
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of BEEAKARBERR  ¥RIES
capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate actions THNAHAEBE 2 EARARB-HBHRE
to adjust the Group's capital structure. The Group's overall FEMEE TEEZEBEBRBDHAER
strategy remains unchanged from prior years. N o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&
7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. HA% &\ i 4% B 5 A Ky B o

AND POLICIES
The financial assets of the Group mainly include cash and AEENTRMEETIZBRERSERS
cash equivalents, trade receivables and deposits and other FEY BEFRKRABAREEREMBE
receivables. Financial liabilities of the Group mainly include WHRE - AEENcREGEFELRE
trade payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due to SENFIE HENFIEREAER -
directors and other loans. ENESEFEREMENR
Risk management is carried out by the finance department AREBEMBEHERTEETNHEAETET
which is led by the Group's executive directors. The Group's REREgR AEEVKBLERNEELE
finance department identifies and evaluates financial risks in BARTAE B EE M R ETBE
close co-operation with the Group’s operating units. The main B-AEESRTIEMEENTERR
risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are liquidity BEAPUERR MERR FEERRRK
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk. GNEE & B o
The Group's financial risk management policy seeks to ensure AEBENMBEEREERREERREA
that adequate resources are available to manage the above RAERERE PR R I RKRRKREE
risks and to create value for its shareholders. The board BE-EFgcHERAZFAR (RTX
regularly reviews these risks and they are summarised below. Bhat) -
(a) Categories of financial instruments () €EMIEZDE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARET T
Financial assefs: TRMEE:
At amortised cost REHKATTE 86,748 111,793
Financial liabilities: TRAaR:
At amortised cost bioe | s 30,749 16,616
(b) Foreign currency risk (b) FME R B
The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk AEBESWINERBE /1T
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities HRERBLOEBRZG BELEA
are principally denominated in the functional currencies BEXEUREEEBNREE
of the Group entities. The Group currently does not have B AEEERLTERINERS
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign BENBEWTIINEHPER K
currency fransactions, assefs and liabilities. The Group EEERYEREIIERR  IHR
monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and will FERZREPEANINE AR -

consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

7.

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest bearing assets and
liabilities. The Group's income, expenses and operating
cash flows were substantially independent of changes in
market inferest rates. Fluctuation of market rate does not
have significant impact fo operating cash flows and no
sensitivity analysis has been presented accordingly.

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Substantial amounts of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are held in major reputable financial
institutions located in the PRC and Hong Kong, which
management believes are of high credit quality.
The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise frade receivables, deposits and other
receivables arises from default of the counterparties,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts
of these instruments. The Group has no other financial
assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk.

The Group sells most of the products to a small number
of customers in the marble distributors. As a result, it
faces a high level of concentration of credit risk. The
Group manages this risk by offering standardised
credit terms to its customers of marble products for
an approved credit term of 90 days. Some major
customers which have long relationship with the Group
were granted for a longer payment term. The Group
maintains sfrict control over its outstanding receivables
and senior management regularly reviews the overdue
balances. In addition, the Group's exposure to credit
risk is also influenced by the individual characteristics of
each customer and default risk of the industry in which
customers operate.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk as 43%
(2019: 31%) and 100% (2019: 94%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the largest customer and top
five largest customers within the sales of marble and
marble related product segment.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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2020 %R 111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl 55 ¥R 2% b 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. W% )B4 o B A J SR o)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment (d) EEREKRBEFMS
(Continued)
The top largest customer is a privately owned property BRREFPR BN EZRLEM
developer in the PRC with whom the Group had trading ERER AEEEBEZEFERA
relationship over the past few years. EE 5%
The Group applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to AEBERABEKRM KRS EREO
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifefime REEFEAERBEEEER Z
expected credit loss allowance for all frade receivables. A A E 5 R IAE A 2
To measure the expected credit losses, frade receivables EHEEBEEREE - BTEEHE
have been grouped based on shared credit risk EFEBR BES5RWAREECREHRR
characteristics and the days post due. The following WEERBREHALRERRESAE-
table provides information about the Group's exposure THRIEHEBAEEMEGENEE
to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables: Rk EZERFENTEREES

BOER:

As at 31 December 2020 MR2020%F12A31H

Expected credit

loss rate  Gross carrying Loss
(Note 1) amount allowance
EHEEERE

(HEEED) IREAE EERE
Provision on individual basis RE R R REE
Over 360 days 3608 £ 100% 138,183 138,183
Provision on collective basis REE E TR
0 to 90 days 0£90H 1.3% 27,387 357
91 to 180 days Q1£2180H 11.2% 19,835 2,219
181 to 360 days 1812360H 12.6% 26,299 3,310
Over 360 days 3608 E 40.5% 18,856 7,639
Total HBET 230,560 151,708
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. BAE BG4S P H 2 R BUR (2
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment (d) =& =k RREEFE @

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019 MR2019F12H31H

Expected credit
loss rafe Gross carrying Loss
(Note 1) amount allowance
BHEEBEX
(BzED) REAE BEEE

Provision on individual basis WA EEIRER

Over 360 days 360R LAk 100% 116,338 116,338

Provision on collective basis REARENIRER

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 8.7% 31,389 2,737

91 to 180 days Q1ZE180H - - -

181 to 360 days 1812360H 33.2% 16,221 5,378

Over 360 days 360B M E 42.8% 34,718 14,845

Total Fab 198,666 139,298

Note: B 5T -

1) Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over 1) BEHERXDERBE=ZFNERER
the past 3 years. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect BH-BAEBEEDEHEARRTZE
current and forward-looking information on macroeconomic BEFEMNERFENENNEBRLER
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the ZNHRBRAELEER - AEEE &5
receivables. The Group has identified factors to be the most EHENER TERZERXNTED
relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates EYHEEFAEBEBHREEX-

based on expected changes in these factors.

Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL

creditimpaired)  (creditimpaired) Total
2 HIEE 2HEN
EEBE EEEE
(AJ|EERE) (FEEERHE) wEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARETR AR¥TR
As at T January 2019 R2019F1 A1H = 111,098 111,098
Impairment loss recognised, net ~ EHERMEEEFE 22,960 5,240 28,200
As at 31 December 2019 and ~ R2019%F12A31H K&
as at 1 January 2020 20201818 22,960 116,338 139,298
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRE>HEHEEBE
(creditimpaired) (GEEERE) (14,837) 14,837 =
Impairment loss recognised, net BRI B & 1E T3 7,438 7,008 14,446
Exchange differences BE X =58 (2,036) - (2,036)
As at 31 December 2020 2020 12A318 13,525 138,183 151,708
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. W% )B4 o B A J SR o)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Credit risk and impairment assessment (d) EEREKRBEFMS
(Continued)
An impairment assessment on the Group's frade K& EE 5 FE W R IE /R E T 4 B
receivables was prepared by an independent valuer. B HEMET - B E2020F12
The expected credit loss for trade receivables was R3R - EZRKRENEHREE
measured at approximately RMB151,708,000 (2019: BEHAARKIS, 708,000t
RMB139,298,000) as of 31 December 2020 and (2019F : AR¥ 139,208,000
was measured in accordance with the IFRS @ and the o) WRBEEERMEREENFEO
following formula: FRATAKGE:
Exposure at Default (EAD) * Probability of Default (PD) * ERRBE D (EAD)* ZLHBL X (PD)*
Loss Given Default (LGD) * Discount Factor (DF). EBHE K K(LGD)* BLIR X (DF) -
The carrying amounts of trade receivables would be the EBARRMOKAE S EKRIAN
EAD. Depending on the nature of receivables, the PD REE - RFEEFENEE ED
is derived from various parameters, such as corporafe BEREZEDE MITENEERE
default rate forecasts by industry, emerging market WRTBR - IZITRE D ETIHE
credit indices by industry and rating, aging record and ERELFAR BRRTHERAFTHBG
historical payment or default records from the company ERRKBLRLE -

are considered.

The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has e REMBERFIENEELD X
been assessed with reference to historical information N2 EBEBRXGHTENENE
about the counterparties default rates. The Directors are SERIB - EERAE KT H
of the opinion that, except for other receivables with BEERENHEMEKRKELDA
the amounts of approximately RMB34,000 (2019: R¥34,0007L (2019%F : AR ¥
RMB34,000] classified as creditimpaired, the credit 34,00070)  ER BB E WK
risk of deposits and other receivables is low due to the SRR RE R E MR KRN
sound collection hisfory of the receivables due from FEERBEM At REZE2020
them. Therefore, no impairment loss of the deposits and FI2A3VBLFE T EREE R
other receivables was recognised during the year ended Hip el RIRTE R R EEE -

31 December 2020.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (e)

Ko 75 e e 7 B H AR R BOR ()

REBETER

The Group monitors its exposure to a shortage of
funds by considering the maturity of both its financial
liabilities and financial assets and projected cash flows
from operations. The Group's objective is to mainfain
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of interestbearing loans and its own
funding sources.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities as at the
end of the reporting period. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. When the creditor has a choice
of when the liability is setiled, the liability is included on
the basis of the earliest date on when the Group can be
required fo pay. The maturity dates for financial liabilities
are based on agreed repayment dates.

AREEEERALBABRSBE
ENMRABSLEERERENE
EREASERAR  AEBENE B
BEBEMAHERARAASNE
SRR B E S R REE R
P

TRFAINBERRAEE SR E
BRI ANBBBER AR IIRE
AEEAREHERNKNEE BN
ReEMBENARMBERSRERR
EERATEEAREENSHE
BERASETRENEREENR
FEEHHAR-2RABMNIHARR
BIHEZERA -

2020
2020%
More than
2 years Carrying
Less than but not amount as at
1 year Between more than 31 December
orondemand 1 and 2 years five years Total 2020
R2020%
151/ 260k 12318
FRER 1228  {BFBBSE @it WIREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Trade payables 2 SEMTE 8,998 S = 8,998 8,998
Other payables and accruals EHERTER

[E:rER 11,590 - - 11,590 11,590
Amounts due fo directors ENEZHE 6,738 S = 6,738 6,294
Other loans EER 4,095 - = 4,095 3,867
lease liabilifies HERE 644 96 88 828 803
32,065 96 88 32,249 31,552
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(e) LIqUIdII’y I'iSI( (Continued)

S il 35 ¥R b 5F

7. AR E\ B P H R R BUR (#)

e) RBEEZRAMR 9

2019
2019%
More than
2 years Carrying
less than but not amount as at
1 year Between more than 31 December
orondemand 1 and 2 years five years Total 2019
20195
(k3] BN 12A31H
FREL 1226 (EFBRF @it WEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARET T ARETT ARET T
Trade payables HHRNTE 558 S S 558 558
Other payables and accruals At ENRER
EHER 10,472 = = 10,472 10,472
Amounts due 1o directors ERNEZTE 5,991 - - 5,991 5,586
Lease liabilities MERE 1,508 875 196 2,579 2,470
18,529 875 196 19,600 19,086
(f)  Fair value of financial assets and financial fl eMEERERMEGBZIAN

liabilities

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities

approximate to their respective fair values.
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8.

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Revenue represents the consideration for goods sold, net of
trade discounts and returns and various types of government
surcharges, where applicable.

The Group's revenue and confribution to profit were mainly
derived from ifs sale of marble and marble related products,
which is regarded as a single operating segment in a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally fo the Group's senior management for purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment. In addition,
the Group's total revenue were derived in the PRC and over
Q0% of the Group's non-current assets are locafed in the PRC,
no geographical segment information in accordance with IFRS
8 is presented.

Information about products
The following table sets forth the total revenue from external
customers by product during the year:

W\ e 2884 oy ¥ R

WAREEEmWRE HKRE ST
FARFIA K Z BB M & (@A) -

AEBNBRAREENOEREERA
REARAXELARBERMNHEE  EI
BIFEE—RK208 EAMAAKEN
BREEEREEMEERNIERKRR
AFAEAEN TR -l AEREAW
ABREFBEBEEBOLNIERDEE
AL R B B R R B R B A R
SERNESF 2R ABE #

FHRERHNESN
TREIFAKERENDKRBINBEFR
OEGE ANE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%FT AREFIT
Revenue from contracts with customers RKERFPEH WA
recognised af a point in time: (RE—FER
Marble slabs KI2 AR 41,413 39,892
Marble slags KIBAES 31,352 25,797
72,765 65,689
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8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WA LR S AR E R ()
INFORMATION (Continued)
Information about major customers FBRXEEZEFHNESR
Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted for REEEEZF(FEZSHEBERAHION
10% or more of the total revenue is set out below: FA L) B BAFEINAT
2020 2019
20204 2019F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
Customer A EEA 18,963 20,177
Customer B ZFB 22,450 19,715
Customer C =FEC 31,352 17,925
Transaction allocated to the remaining PHREEFANBRTENEEN
performance obligation for contracts with 5
customers
The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph AEBERKBERMEREEDNFEISRKRE
121 of IFRS 15 to its sales contract for marble and related 1I21EBMAIITREFZEAREXRIER
products such that the Group does not disclose information MEHERNEEAL At ~EB Y
about revenue that the Group will be entifled to when it BREAUAEENRBITAEAKIEH
safisfies the remaining performance obligations under the EmEEAHN (REHBR A —FHIN
contract for sales of marble and related products that had an TIETHTRAEERERESHK
original expected duration of one year or less. ABEH -
9. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 9. AW K Mtk A
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT
Interest income F B A 1 1
Exchange (loss)/gain PEX (E1R) W (11) 10
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME BEIREZ
plant and equipment (B8/) M (150) 414
Gain on early termination of lease RATKIEHEE 2 W= 69 10
Government grants (Note) B AL (A1) 144 -
Others EHAh 89 332
142 767
Nofe: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount represents Hiet - BIE2020F12R31 B ILFE Z2HIEBTER
government subsidies granted due to the COVID-19 pandemic under FRE (MR E] TR EREBRBEZEM
Employment Support Scheme of the Hong Kong Government. BT 0 BUR 4 Bk -
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10. IMPAIRMENT LOSS UNDER EXPECTED

CREDIT LOSS MODEL

10. TS S0 IRABLNT Z I e s

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR AREF T

Impairment loss recognised on: PR IRMER ZBERE
— frade receivables — & 5 W I8 14,446 28,200
— other receivables —H b fE U FRIB = 34
14,446 28,234

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. B BRAR

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR% T AREEFIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 77 Q2
Interest on loan from a director BEEERHE 403 79
Interest on other loans HEERFHE 156 -
636 171
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12. LOSS BEFORE TAX 12. BRABE T 1H
The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBABRBATEBEME, (5T A) B
(crediting): TEBEEBEN:
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR AREF T
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 65,864 61,260
Staff costs (including directors’ EIXRA(BREEEFHE) :
remuneration):
Wages and salaries TEERF & 4,468 5,963
Equity-seftled share-based o EE RN ABERD
payments expenses BEEF3 - 10,954
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K18 F 51 2 £ 3% 121 154
Other staff benefits EMBETHREH 10 108
4,599 17,179
Auditor's remuneration FEITRI IS
- Audit services — B AR 444 493
— Non-audit services —JEE T ARTE 142 56
Amortisafion of infangible assets | EEEH 1,988 1,088
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BB LRETE
and equipment 4,678 12,074
Depreciation of rightof-use assefs FREEENE 1,506 1,392
Expenses related fo shortterm lease R SRR 447 542
(Reversal of provision)/provision FA(BEEE) BB
for litigation (3,401) 9,401
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ Emoluments

13. EF LA ERHGALHE

(o) ESMHS
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BZE2020F12831ALEE

Refirement
Salaries, benefits
allowances and scheme Total
Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
§é 2ER BARERHE
He HipFE #% MedE
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W ARETR ARETR AR¥TR AR¥TR
Executive directors: S
Mr. Zheng Yonghui BIp P - 230 - 230
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REELL - 433 2 435
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong REBLAE i = 68 = 68
Mr. Zhang Weijun REELE - 160 - 160
Mr. Zhang Mian RAEE - 213 - 213
Independent non-execufive directors: BUFHITES:
Mr. Yang Ruimin BHE%E 85 - - 85
Mr. Sheng Guoliang RER %A i 53 = = 53
Ms. Wang Yihua TEEgt ] 53 - = 53
Mr. Mehmet Ertan Ahmed Mehmet Ertan Ahmed % 4 (ii 29 = = 29
Mr. Andreas Varianos Andreas Varianos % £ i} 98 - - 98
318 1,104 2 1,424
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE019512A318ILEE
Equity-setfled
Salaries, Retirement sharebased
allowances and  benefits scheme payments Total
Fees  other benefits contribufions expense emoluments
BRiE
He RURE  RHEFHEHE Ri7 RELRE
[k fkilE # ZRFAX Hegs
Nofes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi ARETT ARETR ARETR AREFT AREFT
Executive directors: WiES:
Mr. Zheng Yonghui BxEBRiL fiv) = 320 = = 320
Ms. Zhang Cuiwei REFTL = 451 21 = 472
Mr. Zhang Jianzhong REBELE = 135 = - 135
Mr. Zhang Weijun REEEE S 158 = = 158
Mr. Zhang Mian bt v) - 141 - 1817 1,058
Independent nonexecutive directors: BUFHITES:
Mr. Yang Ruimin Bigts 84 S S = 84
Mr. Sheng Guoliang BEARLE 106 B _ _ 106
Ms. Wang Yihua TEELL 106 = = = 106
296 1,205 21 1817 3,339
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13, #3 Joh 4 S B AN o
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Coninved)
(a) Directors’ Emoluments (Continved) () EEME 9
Notes: B 7
(i) Ceased on 29 June 2020 (i) H2020F6 820 H B (T
(i) Appointed on 28 September 2020 (ii) R2020F9 A28 B ER L
liii)  Appointed on 17 July 2020 (iii) R2020F7 1 7BEZE
(iv) Appointed on 9 April 2019 iv) R2019F4 0B B Z (T
(v) Appointed on 4 February 2019 (v) R2019F2 A8 EZ (T
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for MBARATESTINz2HFS 2
the executive directors are generally emoluments paid REDVNEZRAZZALERARAR
or receivable in respect of those persons’ other services ANEMBARZEEMREHRZHE
in connection with the management of the affairs of the fib AR % 2 A< Sk 1% 5 B Wz — AR
Company and ifs subsidiaries. & e
(b) Five Highest Paid Individual Emoluments b) ERESHALTHE
One (2019: One) of the five highest paid individuals of AEBLARSHFALTEE %
the Group were directors whose emolument is sef out in (2019F : —RK)EEF - HEle 2 &
the above. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the M EX B ZE2020612H31H 1E
remaining four (2019: four) employees’ emoluments of FE ARAAEKIEA(20194F : M
the Company were as follows: Z)EEHMEMT
2020 2019
20204 2019F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ~ #r & ~ Z L K E b B ¥ FlzE

in kind 1,767 542
Retirement benefits scheme confributions 3R K 4& FI| 5+ & # 5k 64 =
Equity-seftled share-based BEEE AR R

payments expense Ei 2 MRBAX = 7,309

1,831 7,851
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

13. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13. AR AEEHFALNE @

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five Highest Paid Individual Emoluments
(Continued)
Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

b) EEBEHATHME o
WEZHMNSBE QT :

Number of individuals

AE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Emolument band: FrMEE
Nil = RMB500,000 0= AR¥500,0007T 3 -
RMB500,001 = RMB 1,000,000 AR¥500,001 02
AR¥1,000,0007T 1 -
RMB1,000,001 — RMB1,500,000 AR¥1,000,001 &
AR#1,500,0007T - 4
4 4

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the Directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement fo join or
upon Jjoining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
None of the Directors or five highest paid individuals waived
or agreed fo waive any emoluments during the years ended

31 December 2020 and 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain director
and five highest paid individuals were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group under the share option
scheme of the Company. Defails of the share option scheme
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

Except disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or
any subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in which a
director had a material interest, whether direcily or indirecily,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

FEESAREEZERERAF

REZE2020% R2019F12A31 8 14
B AEEYBEAEFLRIAERFTA
ITXMNME ERRIBEMALXEE
FRMARNEERNRER HIERBEE
B 18 - Bl 220204 R2019F12H 31
ALFERE BEEEXARESFAL
MESLFRBRETAFHM-

BZE2019F12A31BIEFE - F&E
ERTEABRSFALTRERARABEE
B RERAARERTNORBERE
- -BREFIAZHFBERG AN
HRMEIS o

BREaMBHRARMEI/MBREEN RN
FRIXFRAEMEKRE XRFHAR A
TRAMBARMESET T HAREEE
BEBEEERNHETERAMEREE
AEENEMR S L REH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 14. iSRS

Under the Llaw of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax
rate of subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC is 25% for
both years.

The tax rate of subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong is
16.5% for both years.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax and Hong Kong
Profits Tax has been made for both years in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group has sufficient tax losses
brought forward to set off against assessable profits or no
assessable profits arising in the PRC or Hong Kong.

The reconciliation between the income tax expenses for the
year and the loss before tax multiplied by the applicable tax
rate is as follows:

REFPECEMBSHE(IEERBR
EDERCEMGRZABBKS  KA2QF
R ERRRNMIEFEZHEE
R25% o

ARBAREBERBZHBRAARMEFEZ
MEERI6.5%°

HRASEAERRNEERABRER
BHHEEFRENINPEXFTELEE
ERER RS A BN W EFE X E R
EUBBEARPBEEEMSHEEEF
BRIELBE-

F NPT 1S T B ST % B B AT S 48 3R DA E AR
MERZHERWAT

2020 2019

20204 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETF T

Loss before tax B BB 1B (30,449) (68,505)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of BRAEEETRAERME

companies within the Group STEAEMBIE (7,739) (12,557)
Tax effect of income not taxable PGB VB ERBU AR

for tax purpose MR & (11) [105)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible MR E NN A D

for tax purpose MBEE 5,256 9,730

Tax loss not recognised AR IAE 18 2,494 2,932

Income fax expenses FriS Rt Mz - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continved)

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unused estimated
tax losses of approximately RMB51,876,000 (2019:
RMB50,483,000] available for offsefting against future profits
and the unused estimated tax losses will be expired within 5
years. No deferred tax asset (2019: Nil) has been recognised
in respect of such tax losses due to unpredictability of future
profit streams.

15. LOSS PER SHARE

(a) Loss per share —Basic

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss for the year atiributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB30,449,000 (2019
loss of RMB68,505,000) and the weighted average
number of approximately 2,832,083,000 (2019
2,832,083,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

(b) Loss per share—Diluted
For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2020, the
effects of all potential ordinary shares are antidilufive
since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease
in loss per share.

The basic and diluted loss per share are the same for

the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2020.

FEESAREEZERERAF

Bl 755 ¥R 2= Pl 5 E

14. FrfaBiBd % (o)

15.

R2020%F12A31H - AEEERPAM
SAAHIEEELNAREKES,876,0007T(2019
F: AR¥50,483,0007T) - AT K 85 K
oA BRABRAEARESERKR A
F AR H o /70K SR A 1B R A TRORI
AEERERZSHABBERDRTERA
BE (2019F &) -

iid

(o) BRER-EX
SREABBRIRBEAQAE
EABRGBEEFREBRAOARE
30,449,0007 (20194 : 5
BARMO68,505,0007T) R4F
REETEBKMETHEHL
2,832,083,0008 (20194 :
2,832,083,0008R) st E 15 i -

(b) ﬁﬂﬁgﬂﬁ—ﬁ%
HZE=2019F K2020F 12431
¢¢F FBEEBEE @Hxﬂﬂﬁ&
MEXE W BERBRRTEZSE
BELBRAIEHEREBRD -

BHZE2019F k20204 12H31H
LHEE SRERAREEERAR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&
16.

17.

126

DIVIDEND

Bl 35 ¥R 2R P 5E

1 6 H}Lou\

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders 20204 It & (A A& A 7 & A AR IR ROR
of the Company during 2020, nor has any dividend been FEBRMNEMBRE - B, E HHE UK
proposed since the reporting period (2019: Nil). TEREZRMNEMRE (2019F : &) -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W2~ B S skt
Leasehold
improvement
Plantand  and office Motor Mining ~ Consfruction
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles infrastructure in progress Total
BENE
%R
BF HEREE BLERE RE  RRER HRIE &t
RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETR ARMTR ARKTR ARMTR ARETR AR%TR
COST: RA:
Asat 1 Jonuary 2020 R2020F1A18 9,232 57,221 6,130 12,142 61,183 110,301 256,209
Exchange realignment EHAR - - (1) (35) - - (36)
Additions AE - - - - - 6,326 6,326
Disposal /wiitien off HE/HH - (11,72¢) (88) - - - (1814
As ot 31 December 2020 #2020612A318 9,232 45,495 6,041 12,107 61,183 116,627 250,685
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT:  RtHiEREE:
As at 1 January 2020 R202061 818 4,402 30,172 2,961 8,602 13,950 17,390 77 477
Exchange realignment EXAE - - (1) (23) - - (24)
Provided during the year FREE 576 937 442 2,723 - - 4,678
Disposal /wiitien off HE/ - (6,306) (44) - - - 5,350)
As at 31 December 2020 #2020%12A318 4978 25,803 3,358 11,302 13,950 17,390 76,781
Carrying amounts: fRE®E:
As ot 31 December 2020 #2020%12A318 4,254 19,692 2,683 805 47,233 99,237 173,904
COST: A
Asat T Jonuary 2019 R2019F1A18 9,232 55,797 11,736 16,222 61,183 109,252 263,422
Exchange reclignment ELAE S S 58 48 S - 106
Additions AE - 1,424 88 61 - 1,049 2,622
Disposal /written off e/ = - [4,499) (4,189) - - (8,688)
Writien-off upon deregistration of subsidiary BEE M B A A B = = 1,253 = = = 1,253
As ot 31 December 2019 #2019612A318 9,232 57,221 6,130 12,142 61,183 110,301 256,209
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENTS: Rt iEREE:
As at 1 January 2019 ®2019%1A18 3,826 20,381 7,012 11,498 13,950 17,390 74,057
Exchange realignment ERAE = = 58 43 - - 101
Provided during the year FREE 576 9791 507 1,200 - - 12,074
Disposal /wiiten off HE/ Mk - - 4,476 4,139) - - 8,613)
Writen-off upon deregistration of subsidiary VRl INGILSE b - - [140) - - - (140)
As ot 31 December 2019 ®2019%12A318 4,402 30,172 2,961 8,602 13,950 17,390 77,477
Carrying amounts: REE:
As ot 31 December 2019 #2019612A318 4,830 27,049 3,169 3,540 47,233 92,911 178,732
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contneed)  17. #03E~ W5 B3t ()

The Group's property, plant and equipment are mainly used
in the Group's sale of marble and marble related products

“Sichuan Jinshida CGU").

ended 31 December 2020, the Directors conducted a review

operation (the During the year
of the recoverable amount of the Group's property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and rightof-use assets based on
the value in use of Sichuan Jinshida CGU and concluded that
no impairment loss to be recognised in 2020 (2019: Nil) in
the Group's property, plant and equipment, intangible assets
and rightof-use assets. The recoverable amount have been
determined on the basis of the value in use of the CGU, the
valuation is prepared by an independent professional valuer.
The pretax discount rafe in measuring the amounts of value
in use were 21% (2019: 23%) in relation to Sichuan Jinshida
CGU. The growth rate of cash flow in the long run are
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3% (2019: 3%).
Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations related
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows included budgeted
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the
Sichuan Jinshida CGU's past performance and management’s
expectation for future performance.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amounts of Sichuan Jinshida CGU to exceed the recoverable
amount. If the discount rate was changed to 25% (2019
27%), while other parameters remain constant, the recoverable
amount of CGU of Sichuan Jinshida CGU would equal its

carrying amount.

FEESAREEZERERAF

AEBZME - BERR ﬁixﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬂi
EEAEBEARARELHEBERES ([T
NeRKERSELBEM])ZHE - RNE
E2020F12RA31BEFE EFHKR

MleRERSEABEM2FRAEESE

BMAKEZYE BEMRE BRLEE
UREREEEZATWE S EEN

20200 EFAAEEZYE BE KR

B EVEEARERBEERRRE
BB (201904 &) - Al NE & BRAS
ErBUZEREEET AHMBET
HBEYEXREMRER OIS KE
ReELBNECREESE TN
BRI R B21% (2019F : 23%) - H &
EZRHBREERERI% (20194 : 3%)
ZREBRXERER - AEEREECH
MEERZXSRESRA ML Z M5
BREEEHERNRENX ARG
REDIEEREELFN2BER
BREEBHRRRE ZFAAIEL -

EEERR TANZFHRENEMEHEE

AREEsH K retynm)eRBERSE
ABEUMKREEBB WO - M
WEBFR25% (2019F :27%) - M H
wW2HEERTE MR EREE
EBEUNATRESERAENERAEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. M EE

Mining
rights
PRuERE
RMB'000
ARETF T
COST: RN :
As at 1 January 2019, as at 31 December 2019, R2019F1H1H -M2019F12/318
as at 1 January 2020 and as aft 31 December 2020 7202051 A1 H k20204 12H31H 62,785
AMORTISATION: ey
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F181H 19,053
Charge for the year FAXH 1,988
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%F12A31H
and as at 1 January 2020 ER2020%1A1H 21,041
Charge for the year FRXEZE 1,088
As at 31 December 2020 R2020%F12H31H 23,029
CARRYING AMOUNT: REE:
As at 31 December 2020 R2020%F12H31H 39,756
As at 31 December 2019 R2019F12H31H 41,744

BEERERARRFZBRILANKES
EEMEN ZELUCRPEMLIET

The intangible assets represent rights for the mining of marble
reserves in the Zhangjiaba Mine which is located in Jiangyou

County, Sichuan Province, the PRC. The Mine is operated
by the Company's indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Sichuan
Jiangyou Jinshida Stone Co., lid.* (“Sichuan Jinshida"). The
local government granted the mining permits fo Sichuan
Jinshida with a term of 10 years to 1 February 2021. The
Group is currently in the process of renewal of the mining
permits.

The Group conducted a reviews of the recoverable amount
of its intangible assets in 2020 and 2019. The Group's
infangible assefs are used in the Group's Sichuan Jinshida
CGU. Details please refer to note 17.

No impairment loss was recognised for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

* English translation for identification only
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THeRHEAEAERAA ([T €8
ZDRE-WITBRETOINIEZHER
HIOFEMRBAFAZE 220214241
BRH-AEBEEMEENERBEFA

AREER2020F R2010F BHHE BT
BEZAKEBEHE AEEZEFVEE
BRAEBE 2R ERCEESLL -
HEFL2HME7 -

B ZE2020F R2019F12A31HILF
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. B JH A
Leasehold Leased
lands properties  Motor vehicle Total
HELH HENE AE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARBTT
Cost: A
As at T January 2019 R201961 /1A 2,457 1,620 = 4,077
Addition RE = 2,685 720 3,405
Termination of lease BILRE - (1,620 - (1,620)
As at 31 December 2019 M2019F12A31R 2,457 2,685 720 5,862
Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:
As at 1 January 2019 R2019%F1 A1H 1,204 S S 1,204
Charge for the year FRTM 34 1,275 83 1,392
Exchange realignment PR = 12 1 13
Termination of lease BIEHRE = (625) = [625)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H 1,238 662 84 1,984
Cost: A
As at 1 January 2020 202051 A1R 2,457 2,685 720 5,862
Addition NE - 1,054 - 1,054
Termination of lease RIEHEE - (2,685 - (2,685)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020%12A31H 2,457 1,054 720 4,231
Accumulated depreciation: RiHE:
As at 1 January 2020 R2020%1A1H 1,238 662 84 1,984
Charge for the year FRXI 34 1,329 143 1,506
Exchange realignment BHAE = 41 30 71
Termination of lease BIFHE - (1,515) - (1,515)
As at 31 December 2020 #®2020%12831H 1,272 517 257 2,046
Carrying amounts: fRETE
As at 31 December 2020 R2020%12R318 1,185 537 463 2,185
As at 31 December 2019 M2019%12A31R 1,219 2,023 636 3,878

The total cash outflow of leases were approximately

RMBT,946,000 (2019: RMB2,101,000).

FEESAREEZERERAF

HEZRESREABER/NHARE, 046,000
7T (20194 : AR¥2,101,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Confinved) 19. HHBEEE @

leasehold lands represents lump sum considerations paid or
payable by the Group to acquire leasehold lands located
in the PRC under the medium-term lease where its mining
infrastructure are primarily located. The Group is the registered
owner of these leasehold land. These leasehold lands are
with lease periods of 48-50 years and there are no ongoing
payments to be made under the terms of the land leases other
than payments based on rateable values set by the relevant
government authorities. These payments vary from time fo fime
and are payable to the relevant government authorities. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
presented separately only if the payment can be allocated
reliably.

The Group leases one property (2019 two properties) and
motor vehicle for ifs operations. lease confracts for the leased
properties are entered info for fixed term of 1-2 years and no
extension and termination options. The motor vehicle leases
for 4.5 years. In defermining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a confract and defermines the period for which
the contract is enforceable.

In addition, lease liabilities of RMB261,000 (2019:
RMB364,000) are recognised with motor vehicle as at
31 December 2020. The lease agreement do not impose any
covenants other than the security inferests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

130  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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REAEIER ZEEEAVENEE
THEMOTAEBLS -
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COMPANY

The list below gives the particulars of principal subsidiaries of
the Company which, in opinion of the Directors, principally
affect the operating results and net assets of the Group. To
give full details of subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 22020512431 R IEFE
20. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Place/country of

incorporation/
registration

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #£R&8

1 35 ¥R 2 Bl 53

20. A2 ] B A m Z wE A

Nominal value of issued

and paid-up share/

ERR
EEFEBKER

=AY

BA =T I\

Percentage of equity
inferests attributable to

TREINARRETEMBRARNFE -E
ANCTEIRNSEFCEE 95
PRAM B AR EBIRHMERBNITR -

Company name and operation  Kind of legal enfity ~ registered paid-up capital the Company Principal activities

HRAL

HME

EENY/ BRIRBERG/ KNEEH
DAER ES AERERER EMAZRAZEE BEEAL TEEH

2020: 2019:
20206:  2019%:
Directly held:
BERE:
Kingstone Indusirial Investment Limited The British Limited liability company United States Dollar 100% 100%  Investment holding
Virgin Islands ["'US$"N
[the "BVI")
PhEXREBRAA XBRARE BREMALH 157 REZR
Success United Asia Lid. The BVI Limited liability company US$1 100% 100%  Trading of marble slabs
BB TMERAR RBRAEE BRAMAA [ESH EEARARM
China Kingsmount Industrial Group Limited The BVI Limited liability company Us$1 100% 100%  Inactive
PREWEXEEBRAF KBRS BREMLT [ESH EEEZ
China Kingsfield Mining Group Limited The BVI Limited liability company Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
TECHEREEERAR RBRAHES BRAMLAA B REZR
China Kingsgold Mining Group Limited The BVI Limited liability company US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
PEEERESEERAA RBRLEE BRAMAA (B REAR
Indirectly held:
BERA:
Kingstone (HK] Group Limited Hong Kong  Limited liability company HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
20 (B8 EEARAT BB BREEAT 18T RERER
Kingstone (Guangzhou) Mable Industry Co., Lid.* The PRC Limited liability company US$50,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and frading of
|"Kingstone Guangzhou'| construction materials
2R (BM)AEERAR ([2REM]) FE BREERF 50,000,000% T MIREERENH
Sichuan Jinshida The PRC Limited liability company RMB 10,000,000 100% 100%  Mining, processing and frading
of construction materials
milewE FE BREERF AR¥10,000,0007 FR MIREEREMH
Baiwei (Shenzhen) Invesiment Management The PRC Limited liability company RMB500,000 100% 100%  Inactive
Co., lid.*

BE (RN REERARAH e BREERR AR%500,0007 LEZ%
Zhuhai Jinhong Stone Industry Co., Lid.* The PRC Limited liability company RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
HKELUAEBRAT PE BREERT AR10,000,0007 REAR

* English translation for identification only

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities outstanding at the
end of the year or af any time during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

21. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 21. BB A AR
The movements in deferred tax liabilities are as follows: BIERIBEENEFNT
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
a subsidiary
WA BT B 2 A
FELENARE
FE
RMB'000
ARETF T
As at 1 January 2019, as at 31 December 2019, R2019F1A1H - H2019F 128318
as at 1 January 2020 and as at 31 December 2020 7202051 B 1H RH2020612A31H 608
22. INVENTORIES 22. #8&
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARET T
Materials and supplies R R Ykt 363 363
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. © 5 BEWGKRIH
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT T AREFIT
Trade receivables from contracts RERFEHZE ZEWIEA
with customers 230,560 198,666
Less: Allowance for credit losses = E R IE B (151,708) (139,298
78,852 59,368
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continved) 23. B G EWGKIE (o)

As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers (before allowance for credit losses) amounted

fo approximately RMB182,782,000.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. Except for certain customers solicited by the Group at
the beginning of its commercial operation were granted for a
longer credit terms, the credit period is generally three months.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Trade receivable are non-
interest bearing.

An aged analysis of trade receivables, as at the end
of the reporting period based on the invoice date or
revenue recognition date, and net of allowance for
credit losses, is as follows:

R2019F1ATH - REBEFENZES
EUHIE (IR EEERBEMN ORA
R#¥182,782,0007T °

AEEEERFNEZHRATEREER
A -BAKRERERAABELZERD
HRENETEPERTREREEHIN
EEH-—RR=BA - AEEREHHE
MAEERBABEEREBIENAZE
BEEERR BHERERBRTER

RBERAR REZXZRAHHRBWAER
RH - BEZRUFE(EHREEBER
) HRESTMT

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR TR AREFT

0 to 90 days 0£90H 27,030 28,652
91 to 180 days Q1&2180H 17,616 -
181 to 365 days 1812365H 22,989 10,843
Over 1 vear 1F A E 11,217 19,873
78,852 59,368

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's frade
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amounts of approximately RMB51,822,000 (2019:
RMB30,716,000) (net of allowance for credit losses) which
are past due as at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided additional loss
allowance with RMB10,352,000 for the trade receivables
secured by the properties as the Director considered as a
default.

In determining the recoverability of a frade receivable, the
directors consider any change in the credit quality of the frade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period.
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M2020F12A31A - AEEBEWE S
FURREEREERAZAERNAR
51,822,000 (2019F : AR
30,716,0007T) & & W Bk 3% (&M BR 15
EEREBERB) ZXERBEHRER
H o

R2019F12A318 - AEEAYE
TR IR B 5 8 W KIA R IR B 4N B 1B
WARMKI0,352,000t  RARESER
REBRELD -

REETESRKRARBANAKDER B

FERAVSREEERHEEERS
HRESRUEFBAEEEENERNES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Confinued)

The balance of approximately RMB65,256,000 (2019:
RMB52,446,000) was denominated in HK$, other remaining

balance was denominated in RMB.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 7 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Bl 35 ¥R 2R P 5E

23. ¥ 5 WK A

i%ﬁﬁ%@AEMOS,QS0,000ﬁ (2019
F: ARU¥52,446,0007T) 2 # & LA E
TTERHE - BB TEBRAAAREE-

BHEMGFBEEREEM B REME -

24. PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FEAT RO ~ $% 4 B At HE sk R
RECEIVABLES
(a) Non-current portion (a) EREBBD
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARBETT
Prepayment for acquisition of WHEME WERREZ
property, plant and equipment AR RIA 51,330 51,330
(b) Current portion (b) REWZ
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARBTT
Prepayment TR FRIR 566 371
Deposits b s 2,838 2,713
Other receivables H A & W R IR 804 690
4,208 3,774

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 7 to

the consolidated financial statements.

The balance of approximately RMB360,000 (2019:
RMB319,000] deposits were denominated in HK$, other

remaining balance of deposits and other receivables

were denominated in RMB.

134 China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. Bl kB &EEHY
The Group's cash and cash equivalents are all denominated AEENReMRSFEMHUATIE
in the following currencies: WEtE:
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETR ARETT
Cash and bank balances: Be MIRITHEER:
RMB AR 1,763 2,404
HK$ BT 2,419 46,546
us$ Ep 72 72
4,254 49,022
RMB is not freely convertible info other currencies, however, ARERTTERXBKEMER  HRE
under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations, the (MEARAMBINEER G - KN&E
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies EEEBEBERBEETINERBORT
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange BAREHBRBEMBLER -
business.
26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. H 5 WA R0HE
Trade payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and EHORNREREER 28 —KRRN
are normally setled in 90 days. An aged analysis of trade QORABMN - REZXZRAH HHE
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FIEHRE DT :
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ETR ARET T
0 to 60 days 0% 60H 7,573 436
61 to 120 days 61&120H 1,370 50
121 to 180 days 1212180H - -
Over 180 days 180H LA E 55 72
8,998 558
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HEAMR
Minimum lease Minimum lease
payments payments
BEBENRE HIEBEFIE
2020 2019
20204 2019F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT
Minimum lease payment due: T AT B ) B HA ) S A
HE A
— Within one year —— %" 624 1,429
— Within a period of more than one year —#8i8 — BTN HBMF 2
but not more than two years HAfE) A 86 854
— Within a period of more than two years — BRI FETHBBAF 2
but not more than five years HAR A 93 187
803 2,470
Amounts due for setllement within one year /A — 4 A1 45 & 8 5018
[shown under current liabilities) (RREBBEETZ) 624 1,429
Amounts due for sefflement affer one year 7 —F & & E /518
[shown under non-current liabilities) (RIERBEBEETZEY) 179 1,047
803 2,470
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to REEaERANMETITESEMER
lease liabilities is 3.6% (2019: ranging from 4.2% to 4.7%). FEE3 6% (2019F : N T4 2% =
A4.7%) e
The balance as at 31 December 2020 and as at M2020F12HA31H EKR2019F12H
31 December 2019 was demoninated in HK$. TR ZHEERAB T E
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. b A 31 IH S RE w8 A
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARETF T
Payables relating to: BN 5 % IR A B e FE T ROR
Taxes other than income tax FHIE (FTEHBRIN) 1,558 1,381
Payroll and welfare TERBEH 5,258 6,183
Contract liabilities EHaE 94 131
Accruals and other payables FEET B A & H AR FRIB 11,590 10,472
18,500 18,167
As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted to R2019F 1A 1A 6HEBBENARARYE
approximately RMB®8,000. 98,0007t °
Contract liabilities represented advance payments received BHBBEENREREHEEBERERFA
from customers for sales of marble and related products BRIBEHEBHEHESOMEEREARERH
pursuant fo the respective sales contracts before the control of ERmEEWEMTERE-

the products are passed to the customers.

For the contract liabilities as at 31 December 2019, the entire FR2010F12A31HHNEHNERBMS
balances are recognised as revenue during the year ended 2EMEHRRNBE2020F12A318 LEF
31 December 2020. EHRBBA -

FEESAREEZERERAF 2020 3 137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl 55 ¥R 2% b 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

29. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 29. WA S a0H
2020 2019
2020%F 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT
Lloan from a director (Note a) RKEEEMER (MiFa) 4,444 4,291
Amounts due to directors (Note b) EREEZIE (HiEb) 1,850 1,295
6,294 5,586

Notes: B 5 -

(a) The loans from the Group's director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, are unsecured, (a) REAEBESEKBLENERBERKT .
interest accrued at 10% per annum and repayable within 1 year from BREMEIO% 8 - ANBBEKAHALIRIRA
extension date or drawdown date as appropriate. HORERME) Bt —FREE-

(b) The amount due to the Group's director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui,is unsecured, (b) JE A< 75 85 1B 5 55 B0 oK R 5 A i) FRIE R AR IR R
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. RECBARERER-

30. OTHER LOANS 30. HoAth Bk
2020
20204
RMB'000
ARBTR
Creditor A (Note a) JERBRERA (BitsEa) 3,367
Creditor B (Note b) JERBRFRB (MIEDb) 500
3,867

Notes: B 5 -

(a) The loans are unsecured, inferest accrued at 5% per annum and (a) ZERABEERR BREMNKUFEIBHEER
repayable within 1 year from respective drawdown date. ERAME—FAEE-

(b) The loan is unsecured, interest accrued at 12% per annum and (b) ZERABEER BFEMNXRI2%GELARE
repayable on demand. SKIEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&
31. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

()

(b)

On 8 August 2018, the Company received a writ of
summons (the “Writ") issued in the Court of First Instance
of the High Court of Hong Kong under Commercial
List Action No. 5 of 2018 (the “Action”) by Mr. Li Jiaju
(the “Plaintiff A") against Kinwin International Investment
Limited (the “1st Defendant”), a company wholly owned
by a former director, the Company (the “2nd Defendant”)
and the former director (the “3rd Defendant”), in relation
to a claim for the sum of approximately HK$23.7
million plus interest and cosfs against the 1st Defendant
or alternatively, a claim for a sum of approximately
HK$21.2 million plus interest and costs against the
Company or alternatively a claim for the sum owned by
the 1st Defendant against the 3rd Defendant, pursuant
to a loan agreement between the Plaintiff A and the 1st
Defendant and an alleged deed of assignment that was
executed between the Plaintiff A, 1st Defendant, the 2nd
Defendant. The Company considered no provision made
for the case as this proceeding is still at its early stage
and the Company is highly unlikely to incur any further
liability as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019.

On 22 August 2018, the High Court of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“High Court”) handed
down a judgment to dismiss the application for
summary judgment from Zhongtai International Wealth
Management Llimited (the “Plaintiff B"] which is the
financier of Royal Moon for underwriting of open offer
announced by the Company on 14 May 2015, for
a claim that the Company is liable to account to the
Plaintiff B for wrongfully returning the balance of fund of
approximately HK$61.4 million from the open offer bank
account to Royal Moon on the ground of the alleged
breach of frust and/or breach of equitable/fiduciary
duties.

FEESAREEZERERAF

=g =\
ik O

31.

Bl 755 ¥R 2= Pl 5 E

¥ w78

(a)

R2018F8A8H KRR EEZ
XEEE(TRER])RIE2018%F
BMEBAFDRESK ([Farl)R
ERREERRFEES HEBE
BREBRQAA([F—WE] —
BHHAETEEF2EREZAA)
ARRA(IEF-_®KE])RAEE
E(IF=wEHNBLOHERASHK
(I2M]) AEEBEREREFH
F-WEITUZERBHERREF
BE-—WHE F_WEELZ—H
BRERLE HEFE -RERD
©##23,700,000% T 5 Al B
RERZRE HEHAQFRD
T R421,200,000% 7T = mF &
RERBZRE HHAHE=HER
HEBE-—BRERNEBRIRE-
ARBRA ARB ADER R
TIHAPE Bt B 2020 12A31H &
2019 12A31HZA A & T KT &
ELfFEME-—FAGE KL EL
IR -

M201848H22R - A K RIITIH
BmFER (IRFEKR]) TEH
REEFHFEEELEVERQ A
(TR&EZ]) (A ARRQFR2015
FOSRMMBRMZARBRERHES
ERARHKES)NBRHREBF
RELHARARNRBARELHEE
RITHERPHRMWANEAREESH
BEHO61,400,0008 cimmRE 2
BLEF EhHREBERETERS
REREY REEE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 2202012431 R [EFE
31. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(b)

(c)

(Continued)

The Plaintiff B is claiming for equitable compensation
and/or damages, and/or account of profits on the
ground of the Company’s breach of trust, together with
an order to pay to the Plaintiff B such sum as may be
found due or payable, including relevant inferests and
costs. The Plaintiff B is also seeking for a declaration
that the Company is liable to account to the Plaintiff B
for the balance of the fund in the open offer account of
the Company or such other sum as the Court thinks fit on
the ground of its breach of trust.

The Company considered no provision made for the
case as this proceeding is sfill at its early stage and the
Company is highly unlikely to incur any further liability
as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019.

On 12 March 2019, the Company received a
notification of proceeding served by Guangzhou City
Huangpu district People’s Court pursuant to which
Mr. Cai You (the “Plaintiff C") commenced a legal
proceedings against Sichuan Jinshida (o wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company] (the “1st Defendant’),
Kingstone Guangzhou, (the “2nd Defendant”) and other,
due to the disputes of an agreement dated 9 August
2013 for assignment of loan between Sichuan Jinshida
(as assignor) Mr. Cai You ("Mr. Cai’] (os assignee)
and Guangdong Huaxia Financial Guarantee Co., (as
guarantor of the assignment agreement] pursuant fo
which Sichuan Jinshida has agreed to assign and Mr.
Cai has agreed to accept Sichuan Jinshida's rights,
title, interest and benefits in and to the loan at a fotal

consideration of RMB40,000,000.

Pursuant to the civil compliant, the Plaintiff C claims
against Sichuan Jinshida and other defedants (i) to
rescind the assignment agreement and an alleged
supplemental agreement, (i) to return the deposit and
part of considerafion in amount of RMB8.0 million in
aggregate, i) to pay compensation of RMB5.0 million.
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ARBRBA AR B ADERFR
EARE B B R2020F12H31H &
2019F 1231 B AR & KA &
EXERE-—FEE RLE K
IR -

MR2019F3R/12B AR EE
T =R A RIAR X EZ FRE
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HU)llekE (EREEAN) EH
FE(IEEE] EREABZA)R
EREERMERRBRIA (A
EiEha ERA)ZHEFTLAH A
HR2013F8AOH 2B EE R
BEEFEMHEARAZZEM
BRramllerE ([E—®E])
SABEM([HE-WE]) FREDHF
BoREZHE HIEHEER
FEZAZERLCREEMANIIE
REHZEERZHEZEN A
B Eakias BRERARE
40,000,0007T °

REZREFEFRMA REREX
Ol & B i B E AR () BB %
EEmhELBEARTHE ()R
BERazRHBO2rREBEAHXARE
8,000,0007 - (iii) X EE & A
E#5,000,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 55 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 22020512431 R IEFE
31. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION (Coniinved)

(c)

(Continued)

On 18 December 2019, Guangdong Province
Guangzhou City People’s Court of Huangpu District
handed down a judgment against Sichuan Jinshida in
respect of the claim for the refund of the deposit and
part of consideration in amount of RMB8.0 million (the
"Claim”), together with interest thereon. The Group
filed an appeal petition at the Guangdong Provincial
Guangzhou Municipal Intermediate People's court
(the "Guangzhou Intermediate Court). The hearings
were made in April and May 2020. The Guangzhou
Intermediate Court handed down the judgement to
uphold the Claim and withdraw the interest on the Claim
to be bore by the Group.

A provision for litigation of approximately RMB10.6
million regarding this case was recognised for the year

ended 31 December 2019.

On 11 December 2020, the Plaintiff C had signed
a seftlement agreement with 1st defendant and
2nd defendant to sefile the case above for a total
consideration in amount of RMB7.2 million. The Group
had paid the full consideration during the year.

32. PROVISION FOR REHABILITATION

31.

PREA T ()

(c)

(&)

M2019F12A18H  ERE E M
mEHERAREER RO EE
EHH ARERESRBOKRES
HARM%S8,000,000T ([BRR&
B EZRERBMNE -AEECD M
EREBEMTHBRARER ([E
Mepfrl)IRH E&F-BEM PR
20204 A RS AHRMTETEE
HEHARAGEEAREFRRESHE
BEAAERRSBENNE -

HE2019F12A31RIEFE B
RURTERFLBEEOARSE
10,600,0007T °

MR202012A11H RERHE
E-HERE_HREXEENMR
HHE LR ERFAERBEARY
7,200,000t M- REEE R F
NBEBZHRE-

32. 1R

RMB’000
AR¥T

As at 1 January 2019, as at 31 December 2019, M2019F 1418 -R2019F128318 -
as at 1 January 2020 and as at 31 December 2020 7202051 A 1R k2020612 H31H 2,697

The Group is required to make payments for restoration and

rehabilitation of certain land after the sites have been mined.

The provision is measured in accordance with the relevant

rules and regulations applicable in the PRC at the end of the

reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A
Number of shares Share Capital
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREEC.IBIZERBR ROEE IR 2
‘000 RMB'000
T ARBET T
Authorised ETE
As at 1 January 2019, MR2019F1 /18 -
as at 31 December 2019, HR20199F12A318 -
as at 1 January 2020 and M2020F1 A1H K
as af 31 December 2020 M2020512H31H 150,000,000 1,215,275
Issued and fully paid BERITRERE
As at 1 January 2019, M2019F1 18
as at 31 December 2019, W20194F12H318 -~
as at 1 January 2020 and R2020F1A1H K
as at 31 December 2020 R2020% 12831 H 2,832,083 24,435
34. RESERVES 34. fil
Contributed reserve BARE
It represents the aggregate amount of the consideration of BARBESERERBRRSIRGH T
RMB24,480,000 paid to the former owners of Sichuan NE&RENZHEMN2008F3 /14
Jinshida b\/ the ultimate controlling shareholder to obtain BRIMMU)I@RENAEE AT A A
the control over Sichuan Jinshida by 14 March 2008 after REBAR®K24,480,0007T MK K
nefting off the investment cost of RMB10,000,000 paid by SEXBRBEEEARNKRIERRERKED
the Group on the acquisition of the entire equity interest in NEREZBREM AR EREA
Sichuan Jinshida from the ultimate controlling shareholder K®¥10,000,000 Bl EEER
pursuant to the reorganisation, as if the acquisition had REZE2010F12A31B IEFERB K
been completed from the beginning of the year ended 31 TR - ERBEEHETHKBSEEMES
December 2010. The corresponding liability of the investment MENREERBREREKXNETARK
cost of RMB10,000,000 payable fo the ultimate controlling 10,000,000t EHEE FEE K2000F
shareholder arising from the acquisition pursuant to the 12RA3BEDERARBEE MxERD
reorganisation was classified as a current liability as at 31 R2010F11AEE -
December 2009 and the balance was setled in November
2010.
Share option reserve BIRERE
Share option reserve represents the fair value of services BREFREENEHEEBHA/BIEK
estimated fo be received in exchange for the grant of the HAERBREMGSHRIMZRE Z A
relevant share opfions over the relevant vesting periods, the hE HBEBDHDREEREARL B S
fotal of which is based on the fair value of the share options ZAREHE-BEHEZEBDERK
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by BREZAAERBEERES (WE)R
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant BoET URBREZGEANERIEE
vesting period (if any) and is recognised with a corresponding o
increase in the share option reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 35. W B st
2011 Option Scheme 201 R AERH &
31 December 2020 31 December 2019
2020128318 2019%12A318
Weighted Weighted
average exercise Number of  average exercise Number of
price per share options  price per share options
sRME Sz
FITRE BREZE FHITEE BiEsA
HK$ '000 HK$ '000
BT Tk BT T
Outstanding af the beginning of RBERNATE
the reporting period 0.25 263,248 0.66 65,002
Share options granted during the year ERR LR
- fo direcfors -ME%
Granted during the year FRRE - - 0.1172 198,246
Outstanding af the end of the reporting period RBREARKITRE 0.25 263,248 0.25 263,248
Exercisable af the end of the reporting period RBRERARATRE 0.25 263,248 0.25 263,248
The options outstanding at the end of the reporting period PR & HA R R 17 60 10 BB AR A B9 D 4 7
have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.72 HFEGE QA7 72F(2019F : 8.72
years (2019: 8.72 vears) and the exercise prices range from FIRTEEBNFO0.09072BTET.Q7
HK$0.0972 to HK$7.97 [2019: HK$0.0972 1o HK$7.97). BIL(2019F : 0.09728B T E/. Q7%
JT) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued)

35. HECRESEHE] (o)

The exercise price and exercise period of those share M2019F 128318 Kk2020F12A31
options outstanding under the 2011 Option Scheme as at B 201 1 FERETEIBETHARITES
31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 are as follows: B RE B TTIE B M ITE AN T -
Exercise
Number of  price per
options share  Exercise period
BREBE SKRITEE THEB
‘000 HK$
T BT
As at 31 December 2020 1,351 7.97  Three tranches in proportion of 50%, 25% and
R2020% 12831 H 25% exercisable form 4 November 2011, 4
November 2012 and 4 November 2013 to
3 November 2021, respectively.
#50% 25% R25% N LL Bl E=4E - H RIE
201111 H48 2012511 H4H k20134
1THARRZE2021F11A3R LA F1T{E -
3,464 1.74  From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
B20145F6A26B 220245 6H250 1
3,290 1.74  From 9 June 2014 to 8 June 2024
B2014F6H9R R E20245F6H8H Ik
4,849 1.63  From 19 December 2014 to 18 December
2024 12,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2014:
and 24,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.
B20145 12198 R E2024512H18H 1 -
% H #912,000,00017 B8 IR #E AT )R 2014412
HI19H sz &7 RIX Hi#924,000,0001
BRI R 201512198 k2 B 1T{F -
4,848 1.65  From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
B2015F1 41288 E2024F12H158 1
47,200 0.0972  From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027
B2017F 11 A23H#£xE2027F 11228 Ik
198,246 0.1172  From 15 April 2019 to 14 April 2029
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 22020512431 R IEFE
35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinued)

Exercise

Number of  price per
options share
BREBE SKRITEE
‘000 HK$

T ETT

fm S Bl 35 ¥R & B 53

35. IEBERERTE ()

Exercise period

1T1E54

As at 31 December 2019
R2019F12A31H

1,351 7.97

3,464 1.74

3,290 1.74

4,849 1.63

4,848 1.65

47,200 0.0972

198,246 0.1172

Three tranches in proportion of 50%, 25% and
25% exercisable form 4 November 2011, 4
November 2012 and 4 November 2013 to
3 November 2021, respectively.

#50% 25% R25% L BI D E=4Ht - DRI B
20111148 2012611 A4H %2013
FI11H48#BE2021F11A3H LA 717
fiF o

From 26 June 2014 to 25 June 2024
BH2014F6 268 E2024F6A258 1t

From Q June 2014 to 8 June 2024
B2014F6 9B #E2024F6H8H 1k

From 19 December 2014 to 18 December
2024 12,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2014
and 24,000,000 options offered may be
exercised on or after 19 December 2015.

H2014F 128198 E2024F12818
A 1E - % HA912,000,00017 8 B AE A 7
201412198 k2 &7 - RE LK
24,000,000 FE AR #ERI 201512719
Ak z&iTlE-

From 12 January 2015 to 15 December 2024
B2015F1 128 #£E2024F12R158 1k

From 23 November 2017 to 22 November
2027
B2017F11A23BE=2027F11A228 1t

From 15 April 2019 1o 14 April 2029
B2019F4H15A B E20290F4 8148 1k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &x& 81 #% $h 2% B 5+

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continved) 35. IEBEREFTE (o)

The fair value of those share options under the 2011 Option
Scheme granted during the year ended 31 December
2019 was approximately HK$12,447,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB10,954,000) of which the Group
recognised as equity-seftled share option expense
of HK$12,447,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB10,954,000] during the year ended 31 December
2019.

No share option granted, forfeited, exercised or expired

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

No share option forfeited, exercised or expired during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The fair value of equity-setiled share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2019 was estimated as at the
date of grant, using a binomial option pricing model, taking
info account the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granfed. The following table lists the inputs to the model
used:

REBE2019F12R8318 L FE AR E
01 EBRBEFEREOBRELA
BHR12,447, 0008 T (HERHOAR
#10,954,0007L) EHhAEBEER#H
Z2019F12A3B L FEHARER
HHEREMX12,447,0008 T (HER
HAR®10,054,0007T) °

BE20205F12A31 B ILFE - B BAE
ERE - BRY - EITEREEm -

BE2019F12A31 A L FE - BLERERE
BRE - ERN BITEXEER-

BE2019F12A3 B ILFEREOER
BEBREAAERELBEREA AN
BRETERN TG ERiREH
R P R B A R K S R TREVIIZRR
P 162 PR 9 B A BB

Share options Share options

granted to granted to

directors employees

MEERH aESRH

B fB I

Date of grant KB 15 April 2019 15 April 2019
2019F4H158 2019%4H15H

Dividend vyield (%) & B2 (%) - -
Expected volatility (%) T8 R 18 (%) 77 .84% 77.84%
Risk-free interest rate (%) 48 [ B ) =R (%) 1.63% 1.63%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 Bl 55 ¥R 2% bt 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 35. M R (o)
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical EHRERABESFARARENESL
volatility of the Company's share price over the previous 8 BROBERET - ZRARAZERAFRE
years. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, BRIEEEESIEEEMN 1THERG &7
based on management's best estimate, for the effects of REZZEBEHREMGRTEBTUAE.

non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral
considerations.

The binomial option pricing model has been used to estimate —IHEABRETEEND ARG ERE
the fair value of the options. The variables and assumptions ZARE-FEBREAAEMAZEES
used in computing the fair value of the share options are MBRDENREFZREMT - BREE
based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an ERETEIERRZIARAEEMBATR -

option varies with different variables of certain subjective
assumptions.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had approximately 2020 12A31H AR AR B RE
263,248,000 (2019: 263,248,000) share options FFEI T B #263,248,00017 (20194 ¢
outstanding under share option schemes, which represented 263,248,00017 ) & & 17 55 B A% #E - 1k 3%
approximately 9.3% (2019: 9.3%) of the Company's shares HARADHETRNOH.3%2019F :
in issue as at that date. Q.3%) °
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAKYE
As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group had 20194 k20205 12HA318 - A& E#%
outstanding commitments as follows: BARBITALNT :
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Contracted but not provided for: B AE R
Purchase of property, BEWE WELRE
plant and equipment 8,830 8,830
Construction of property, BEME BENRE
plant and equipment 6,800 6,800
15,630 15,630
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the
Group had the following significant related party transactions:

(a) Key management compensation

e Bl 35 ¥R B 5F

37.

PR 5 22 5
BHBREL B AREEN K&
EEUTEABETRS:

() *EEBAEMS

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARETF T

Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITEREMBER 2,366 2,451
Pension costs —defined contribution RIKESKA—ERR

scheme HEET 8 18 37
Equity-seftled share-based payments BREEARND B

expense Bz R - 1,817

2,384 4,305

The remuneration of Directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

(b)

EENTETHABZH B b 3 B
ZEEREZREAARBELTSBE
BREE-

Interest on loan from a director (b) EBERAE
2020 2019
2020% 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREFT
Interest on loan from a director EFEHNE 403 79

The interest incurred from the loan from the Group's
director, Mr. Zheng Yonghui, ot 10% per annum.

38. DEREGISTRATION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 26 March 2019, the Group applies to deregister wholly
owned subsidiary, Zhuhai Jinxin Gold Enterprise Management
Co., ltd.* (“Zhuhai Jinxin"). The deregistration cost is

RMB4,000 and completed on 5 September 2019.

Assefs and liabilities derecognised at the date of deregistration
was approximately RMBT,113,000. loss on deregistration
of subsidiaries is approximately RMB1,117,000. The
deregistration cost is RMB4,000 and is satfisfied by cash.
The Group incurred a cash outflow of RMB4,000 due to the

deregistration.

* English translation for identification only
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38.

ERNEELBEAEHEFEKE
FERBNET FREZ10% -

IO s Tk B 2 ]
R201963A260  KEBBFEE 2 A
MEBARDKELBELEOCEERERD
TGS &) BN - A BB
MR/ ARKA 000 RERK20194F
QA5HTERK °

BUHEME AR LERCEERBED
R/RAR®,113,0007T < BUH Mt M B
NEANEBRORARK! 117,000
BUBEMA AR AR®4,0007T K& AR
EEN -ARBUEEM AEBELR S
mE AR %4,0007T -

* GRS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5& 8 #5 ¥R 2% B ¥

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 12A31 B L&
38. DEREGISTRATION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Coninved) 38. BUIH aE M B A B e

The net asset deregistrated of is as follow: BB EEFERAT :
RMB’000
ARBTR
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KR 1,113
Net assets deregistration of BUB M BEFE 1,113
loss on deregistration of subsidiaries BUEE M B8R A2 B1E (1,117)
Deregisfration cost HUH RE B AR (4)
Satisfied by: EBfAA:
Cash B4 A
An analysis of the nef oufflow of cash and cash equivalents in EHEBETMHMBEARNR e kRS
respect of the deregistration of a subsidiary as follows: BYRLEFENDITOT
RMB’000
ARETR
Deregistration cost B T B (4)
Net cash oufflow in respect of B B EUE R MBS A R
the deregistration of a subsidiary WE ML FE (4)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 Bl 55 ¥R 2% b 5

For the year ended 31 December 2020 B Z£20205 1231 B L&

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 39. ARA T BRI
THE COMPANY

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTBARNIRE = -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEE&RE = 66
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,000 2,660
1,000 2,726
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayment, deposits and other AR RIE e K HE R IR
receivables 360 319
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLEFED 319 46,274
679 46,593
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
lease liabilities HEAE 624 1,429
Other payables and accruals Hib AR IR R ERH &M 4,581 4,048
Amounts due to directors T ZE =08 6,294 5,586
Other loans HEER 3,367 -
14,866 11,063
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS wE (BE) EEFE (14,187) 35,530
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBDEE
LIABILITIES (13,187) 38,256
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Llease liabilities HEAE 179 1,040
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (Bf) EEFE (13,366) 37216
EQUITY R
Share capital & 7 24,435 24,435
Reserves (Note) B (M) (37,801) 12,781
TOTAL EQUITY Y (13,366) 37,216
Signed on its behalf of the board of directors by: HTIIEERRESTRE:
Zhang Cuiwei Zhang Weijun
RER REE
Director Director
B=% BE

150  China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # 22020512431 R IEFE
39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

Reserve movement of the Company

Bl 755 ¥R 2= Pl 5 E

39. ARAT BMBRIE =)

B 5 -

ARFELD

Foreign currency

Share Accumulated Share option translation

premium losses reserve reserve Total

BB E R EE BRERE IBAERE B

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTL ARBTT

As at 1 January 2019 R201941A1H 221,144 (238,537) 25,115 31,007 38,729
loss and fotal comprehensive EEEERZABERAE

loss for the year - (37,635) - 733 (36,902)

Grant of share options B HERE - - 10,954 - 10,954

As at 31 December 2019 and ~ H2019F12A31A R

as at 1 January 2020 R202061 A1H 221,144 (276,172) 36,069 31,740 12,781
loss and fotal comprehensive FEEBREZABRAE

loss for the year - (51,108 = 526 (50,582

As at 31 December 2020 R2020612R318 221,144 (327,280) 36,069 32,266 (37,801)

40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 40. LS

Cerfain comparative figures have been reclassified to be
consistent with the current period presentation.

FEESAREEZERERAF
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
AR S RHk e

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND A IR AR S H At 2 e A R
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILLEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
20165 20174 20184 20194 202045
RMB'O0OO  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'0O00  RMB'000
ARBTFIT AREBETT ARETT ARETT AR®TR

Revenue WA 12,290 31,383 67,719 65,689 72,765
(Loss)/profit before tax BRI (B1E) 88 (124,548) 7,797 (19,270] (68,505] (30,449)
Income fax expenses PRE R = = = = -
[Loss]/profit for the year FE (BR) J&F (124,548) 7,797 (19,270) (68,505) (30,449)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL AR B R UL R
POSITION
As at 31 December
R12A318
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

20165 20175 20184 20194 2020
RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT AR®TRI AR¥TR

Non-current assets ERBEE 270,660 247,046 2850992 275684 267,175
Current assets REEE 40,762 220,093 141,052 112,527 87,677
Total assets BEE 311,422 467,139 427,044 388,211 354,852
Current liabilities mEAaE 138,327 53,768 22,511 36,341 38,283
Non-current liabilities FERBAE 3,719 3,506 3,305 4,346 3,484
Total liabilities Bafd 142,046 57,274 25816 40,687 41,767
Net assets/total equity FEE/ B 169,376 409,865 401,228 347,524 313,085
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